

NEW SECTION. Sec. 14. Sections 2 through 8 of this act shall constitute a new chapter in Title 43 RCW.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 15. There is appropriated from the state general fund to the athletic health care and training council for the remainder of the 1983-85 biennium the sum of forty-nine thousand dollars or so much thereof as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this act.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 16. This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety, the support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and shall take effect immediately.

Passed the Senate March 2, 1984.

Passed the House February 26, 1984.

Approved by the Governor March 30, 1984, with the exception of section 6, subsection 2 through 5, sections 7, 8, 9, and 10, which were vetoed.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 30, 1984.

Note: Governor's explanation of partial veto is as follows:

I am returning herewith without my approval, as to several sections, Substitute Senate Bill No. 4484, entitled:

"AN ACT Relating to the athletic health care and training council."

As presented to me, this bill would create an additional state agency to regulate the safety, health care, and training of our school-aged athletes. In addition, it would give the new agency a wide array of powers to establish and enforce certain standards with respect to health and safety of training techniques and equipment. I totally support the intent of this legislation. However, I am not convinced that a clear need has been demonstrated justifying a state agency and a regulatory program of this size and scope.

In addition, this measure ignores the existing authority of elected officials who are responsible for our common school education program, including the athletic component. Indeed, this measure not only substitutes future rules and regulations of the council for that authority but may well place additional and costly burdens on these officials with respect to civil suits arising from any injuries which occur where the rules and regulations may have been violated.

All the issues raised by this legislation merit further study. Therefore, I am approving those portions of the bill which establish the council and empower it to conduct a study of health and safety conditions in organized athletic programs in the state's junior high and high schools.

With the exception of section 6, subsection 2 through subsection 5, sections 7, 8, 9, and 10, Substitute Senate Bill No. 4484 is approved.

CHAPTER 287

[House Bill No. 1159]

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COUNCILS, AND COMMITTEES—COMPENSATION UNIFORMITY

AN ACT Relating to state government; amending section 3, chapter 157, Laws of 1951 as amended by section 1, chapter 21, Laws of 1969 and RCW 1.08.005; amending section 1, chapter 185, Laws of 1943 as amended by section 1, chapter 42, Laws of 1971 and RCW

2.32.160; amending section 5, chapter 268, Laws of 1981 and RCW 2.64.040; amending section 5, chapter 218, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 7, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 9.46.050; amending section 6, chapter 137, Laws of 1981 and RCW 9.94A.060; amending section 3, chapter 299, Laws of 1981 and RCW 13.40.025; amending section 15.24.050, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 12, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.24.050; amending section 10, chapter 129, Laws of 1969 as amended by section 13, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.26.100; amending section 15.28.090, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 14, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.28.090; amending section 15.44.038, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 15, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.44.038; amending section 27, chapter 256, Laws of 1961 as amended by section 19, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.65.270; amending section 15.66.130, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 20, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.66.130; amending section 8, chapter 61, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 21, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.76.170; amending section 6, chapter 133, Laws of 1969 as amended by section 22, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 16.67.070; amending section 7, chapter 226, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 22, chapter 234, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.04.080; amending section 3, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 27, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.08.120; amending section 11, chapter 101, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 28, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.055; amending section 5, chapter 101, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 29, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.140; amending section 2, chapter 168, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 12, chapter 225, Laws of 1982 and RCW 18.18.104; amending section 14, chapter 3, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. as last amended by section 9, chapter 75, Laws of 1977 and RCW 18.18.251; amending section 9, chapter 21, Laws of 1982 and RCW 18.22.014; amending section 2, chapter 53, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 32, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.017; amending section 2, chapter 46, Laws of 1980 and RCW 18.26.070; amending section 14, chapter 168, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.29.031; amending section 3, chapter 93, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 3, chapter 38, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.32.050; amending section 10, chapter 5, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 18.32.600; amending section 5, chapter 43, Laws of 1957 and RCW 18.34.050; amending section 15, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. as last amended by section 12, chapter 39, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.35.150; amending section 9, chapter 93, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. as amended by section 11, chapter 43, Laws of 1981 and RCW 18.39.175; amending section 3, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as amended by section 37, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.43.030; amending section 29, chapter 156, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 18.44.215; amending section 20, chapter 153, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.44.900; amending section 11, chapter 117, Laws of 1951 as last amended by section 65, chapter 211, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 18.51.100; amending section 6, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as last amended by section 45, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.52.060; amending section 13, chapter 25, Laws of 1963 as last amended by section 39, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.54.130; amending section 2, chapter 117, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.57.003; amending section 2, chapter 98, Laws of 1935 as last amended by section 1, chapter 90, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.64.003; amending section 2, chapter 284, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 52, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.71.015; amending section 10, chapter 202, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 3, chapter 111, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 18.72.100; amending section 2, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 3, chapter 116, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.74.020; amending section 4, chapter 222, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 5, chapter 55, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.78.040; amending section 21, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 10, chapter 168, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.83.051; amending section 14, chapter 252, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 49, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.85.080; amending section 8, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 12, chapter 75, Laws of 1977 and RCW 18.88.080; amending section 13, chapter 124, Laws of 1907 as last amended by section 4, chapter 102, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.92.040; amending section 5, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 54, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.050; amending section 2, chapter 280, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 57, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.108.020; amending section 22, chapter 253, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. as amended by section 58, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 19.16.310; amending section 7, chapter

96, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as amended by section 59, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 19.27.070; amending section 5, chapter 207, Laws of 1963 as last amended by section 60, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 19.28.065; amending section 2, chapter 188, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 79, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 19.28.123; amending section 1, chapter 5, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 66, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 27.04.020; amending section 11, chapter 119, Laws of 1935 as amended by section 12, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 and RCW 27.08.010; amending section 28A.04.110, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 67, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28A.04.110; amending section 28A.92.050, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 71, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28A.92.050; amending section 3, chapter 169, Laws of 1983 and RCW 28B.07.030; amending section 6, chapter 36, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 19, chapter 338, Laws of 1981 and RCW 28B.16.060; amending section 28B.50.050, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 9, chapter 30, Laws of 1982 1st ex. sess. and RCW 28B.50.050; amending section 12, chapter 277, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 77, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28B.80.110; amending section 8, chapter 174, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 79, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28C.04.070; amending section 52, chapter 283, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 76, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28C.04.300; amending section 2, chapter 136, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. as last amended by section 91, chapter 3, Laws of 1983 and RCW 41.05.025; amending section 8, chapter 10, Laws of 1982 and RCW 41.06.110; amending section 4, chapter 263, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 87, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 41.24.270; amending section 2, chapter 5, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. as last amended by section 2, chapter 146, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 41.58.015; amending section 1, chapter 167, Laws of 1982 as amended by section 2, chapter 54, Laws of 1983 and RCW 41.60.015; amending section 4, chapter 311, Laws of 1981 and RCW 41.64.030; amending section 35, chapter 1, Laws of 1973 as last amended by section 15, chapter 147, Laws of 1982 and RCW 42.17.350; amending section 43.20.030, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 11, chapter 18, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 43.20.030; amending section 18, chapter 62, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as amended by section 100, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.21A.180; amending section 6, chapter 44, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as last amended by section 104, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.475; amending section 43.24.060, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 15, chapter 227, Laws of 1982 and RCW 43.24.060; amending section 43.24.110, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 101, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.24.110; amending section 5, chapter 3, Laws of 1981 and RCW 43.33A.050; amending section 43.49.010, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.49.010; amending section 43.51.020, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 116, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.51.020; amending section 43.57.020, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 119, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.57.020; reenacting and amending section 11, chapter 5, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 1, chapter 206, Laws of 1981 and by section 7, chapter 338, Laws of 1981 and RCW 43.99.110; amending section 7, chapter 94, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as amended by section 126, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.101.070; amending section 5, chapter 219, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 128, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.105.032; amending section 3, chapter 4, Laws of 1982 and RCW 43.121.030; amending section 7, chapter 273, Laws of 1983 and RCW 43.126.075; amending section 3, chapter 40, Laws of 1982 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 2, chapter 60, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.160.030; amending section 4, chapter 161, Laws of 1983 and RCW 43.180.040; amending section 4, chapter 19, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.200.040; amending section 5, chapter 150, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. as last amended by section 159, chapter 151, Laws of 1979 and RCW 44.60.050; amending section 3, chapter 51, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 46.82.300; amending section 6, chapter 151, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. as last amended by section 29, chapter 53, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 47.01.061; amending section 19, chapter 15, Laws of 1983 and RCW 47.64.280; amending section 14, chapter 150, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 142, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 48.17.135; amending section 1, chapter 231, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 2, chapter 39, Laws of 1982 1st ex. sess. and RCW 49.04.010; amending section 4, chapter 270, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 145, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 49.60.070; amending section 1, chapter 9, Laws of 1977 and RCW 67.08.003; amending section 2, chapter

233, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 155, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 67.16.017; amending section 27, chapter 7, Laws of 1982 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 67.70.270; amending section 33, chapter 290, Laws of 1953 as amended by section 156, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 68.05.060; amending section 3, chapter 147, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 210, Laws of 1983 and RCW 70.37.030; amending section 6, chapter 5, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 70.39.050; amending section 2, chapter 32, Laws of 1951 as amended by section 159, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 70.79.020; amending section 7, chapter 139, Laws of 1973 as amended by section 161, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 70.95B.070; amending section 21, chapter 136, Laws of 1981 and RCW 72.09.150; amending section 3, chapter 137, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 173, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 76.09.030; amending section 22, chapter 137, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 5, chapter 47; Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 76.09.220; amending section 77.04.060, chapter 36, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 6, chapter 78, Laws of 1980 and RCW 77.04.060; amending section 2, chapter 18, Laws of 1935 as last amended by section 3, chapter 337, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 88.16.020; amending section 4, chapter 304, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 179, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 89.08.040; adding a new section to chapter 18.44 RCW; adding new sections to chapter 43.03 RCW; creating new sections; and providing an effective date.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

NEW SECTION. Sec. 1. The legislature finds that members of part-time boards, commissions, councils, committees, and other similar groups established by the executive, legislative, or judicial branches of state government make a valuable contribution to the public welfare. This time and talent so generously donated to the state is gratefully acknowledged.

The legislature further finds that membership on certain part-time groups involves responsibility for major policy decisions and represents a significant demand on the time and resources of members. The demands and responsibilities are well beyond reasonable expectations of an individual's gratuitous contribution to the public welfare. It is therefore appropriate to provide compensation to members of specific qualifying groups and further to provide three levels of compensation based on the responsibilities of the group and the time required to perform the group's statutory duties.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. There is added to chapter 43.03 RCW a new section to read as follows:

CLASS ONE GROUPS. (1) Any part-time board, commission, council, committee, or other similar group which is established by the executive, legislative, or judicial branch to participate in state government and which functions primarily in an advisory, coordinating, or planning capacity shall be identified as a class one group.

(2) Absent any other provision of law to the contrary, no money beyond the customary reimbursement or allowance for expenses may be paid by or through the state to members of class one groups for attendance at meetings of such groups.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. There is added to chapter 43.03 RCW a new section to read as follows:

CLASS TWO GROUPS. (1) Any agricultural commodity commission established pursuant to Title 15 or 16 RCW shall be identified as a class two group for purposes of compensation.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this section, each member of a class two group is eligible to receive compensation in an amount not to exceed thirty-five dollars for each day during which the member attends an official meeting of the group or performs statutorily prescribed duties approved by the chairperson of the group. A person shall not receive compensation for a day of service under this section if the person (a) occupies a position, normally regarded as full-time in nature, in any agency of the federal government, Washington state government, or Washington state local government; and (b) receives any compensation from such government for working that day.

(3) Compensation may be paid a member under this section only if it is authorized under the law dealing in particular with the specific group to which the member belongs or dealing in particular with the members of that specific group.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 4. There is added to chapter 43.03 RCW a new section to read as follows:

CLASS THREE GROUPS. (1) Any part-time, statutory board, commission, council, committee, or other similar group which has rule-making authority, performs quasi judicial functions, has responsibility for the administration or policy direction of a state agency or program, or performs regulatory or licensing functions with respect to a specific profession, occupation, business, or industry shall be identified as a class three group for purposes of compensation.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this section, each member of a class three group is eligible to receive compensation in an amount not to exceed fifty dollars for each day during which the member attends an official meeting of the group or performs statutorily prescribed duties approved by the chairperson of the group. A person shall not receive compensation for a day of service under this section if the person (a) occupies a position, normally regarded as full-time in nature, in any agency of the federal government, Washington state government, or Washington state local government; and (b) receives any compensation from such government for working that day.

(3) Compensation may be paid a member under this section only if it is authorized under the law dealing in particular with the specific group to which the member belongs or dealing in particular with the members of that specific group.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 5. There is added to chapter 43.03 RCW a new section to read as follows:

CLASS FOUR GROUPS. (1) A part-time, statutory board, commission, council, committee, or other similar group shall be identified as a class four group for purposes of compensation if the group:

(a) Has rule-making authority, performs quasi-judicial functions, or has responsibility for the administration or policy direction of a state agency or program;

(b) Has duties that are deemed by the legislature to be of overriding sensitivity and importance to the public welfare and the operation of state government; and

(c) Requires service from its members representing a significant demand on their time that is normally in excess of one hundred hours of meeting time per year.

(2) Each member of a class four group is eligible to receive compensation in an amount not to exceed one hundred dollars for each day during which the member attends an official meeting of the group or performs statutorily prescribed duties approved by the chairperson of the group. A person shall not receive compensation for a day of service under this section if the person (a) occupies a position, normally regarded as full-time in nature, in any agency of the federal government, Washington state government, or Washington state local government; and (b) receives any compensation from such government for working that day.

(3) Compensation may be paid a member under this section only if it is authorized under the law dealing in particular with the specific group to which the member belongs or dealing in particular with the members of that specific group.

Sec. 6. Section 3, chapter 157, Laws of 1951 as amended by section 1, chapter 21, Laws of 1969 and RCW 1.08.005 are each amended to read as follows:

For attendance at meetings of the committee or in attending to such other business of the committee as may be authorized thereby, each legislative member of the committee shall receive the per diem and travel allowances provided for such members by RCW 44.04.120, and each other member shall be ((entitled to allowances at rates equivalent thereto)) compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 7. Section 1, chapter 185, Laws of 1943 as amended by section 1, chapter 42, Laws of 1971 and RCW 2.32.160 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a commission to supervise the publication of the decisions of the supreme court and court of appeals of this state in both the form of advance sheets for temporary use and in permanent form, to be known as the commission on supreme court reports, and to consist of six members, as follows: The chief justice of the supreme court, who shall be

chairman of the commission, the reporter of decisions of the supreme court, the state law librarian, a judge of the court of appeals designated by the chief judges, the public printer, and a representative of the Washington state bar who shall be appointed by the president thereof. Members of the commission shall serve as such without additional or any compensation; PROVIDED, That members shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act.

Sec. 8. Section 5, chapter 268, Laws of 1981 and RCW 2.64.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Commission members and alternate members shall ~~((serve without compensation but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses under RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060((, as now or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 9. Section 5, chapter 218, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 7, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 9.46.050 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Upon appointment of the initial membership the commission shall meet at a time and place designated by the governor and proceed to organize, electing one of such members as chairman of the commission who shall serve until July 1, 1974; thereafter a chairman shall be elected annually.

(2) A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum of the commission: PROVIDED, That all actions of the commissioner relating to the regulation of licensing under this chapter shall require an affirmative vote by three or more members of the commission.

(3) The principal office of the commission shall be at the state capitol, and meetings shall be held at least quarterly and at such other times as may be called by the chairman or upon written request to the chairman of a majority of the commission.

(4) Members shall be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall receive ~~((fifty dollars for each day or major portion thereof spent in performance of their duties plus))~~ reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended)).~~

(5) Before entering upon the duties of his office, each of ~~((said))~~ the members of the commission shall enter into a surety bond executed by a surety company authorized to do business in this state, payable to the state of Washington, to be approved by the governor, in the penal sum of fifty thousand dollars, conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties, and shall take and subscribe to the oath of office prescribed for elective state officers, which oath and bond shall be filed with the secretary of state. The premium for said bond shall be paid by the commission.

(6) Any member of the commission may be removed for inefficiency, malfeasance, or misfeasance in office, upon specific written charges filed by

the governor, who shall transmit such written charges to the member accused and to the chief justice of the supreme court. The chief justice shall thereupon designate a tribunal composed of three judges of the superior court to hear and adjudicate the charges. Such tribunal shall fix the time of the hearing, which shall be public, and the procedure for the hearing, and the decision of such tribunal shall be final. Removal of any member of the commission by the tribunal shall disqualify such member for reappointment.

Sec. 10. Section 6, chapter 137, Laws of 1981 and RCW 9.94A.060 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The commission consists of fifteen voting members, one of whom the governor shall designate as chairperson. With the exception of ex officio voting members, the voting members of the commission shall be appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by the senate.

(2) The voting membership consists of the following:

(a) The head of the state agency having general responsibility for adult correction programs, as an ex officio member;

(b) The director of financial management, as an ex officio member;

(c) Until July 1, 1988, the chairman of the board of prison terms and paroles, as an ex officio member, and thereafter the chairman of the clemency and pardons board, as an ex officio member;

(d) Two prosecuting attorneys;

(e) Two attorneys with particular expertise in defense work;

(f) Four persons who are superior court judges;

(g) One person who is the chief law enforcement officer of a county or city;

(h) Three members of the public who are not and have never been prosecutors, attorneys, judges, or law enforcement officers.

In making the appointments, the governor shall seek the recommendations of Washington prosecutors in respect to the prosecuting attorney members, of the Washington state bar association in respect to the attorney members, of the association of superior court judges in respect to the members who are judges, and of the Washington association of sheriffs and police chiefs in respect to the member who is a law enforcement officer.

(3) All voting members of the commission, except ex officio voting members, shall serve terms of three years and until their successors are appointed and confirmed. However, the governor shall stagger the terms by appointing four of the initial members for terms of one year, four for terms of two years, and four for terms of three years.

(4) The speaker of the house of representatives and the president of the senate may each appoint two nonvoting members to the commission, one from each of the two largest caucuses in each house. The members so appointed shall serve two-year terms, or until they cease to be members of the house from which they were appointed, whichever occurs first.

(5) The members of the commission shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~). Legislative members shall be reimbursed by their respective houses as provided under RCW 44.04.120, as now existing or hereafter amended. Members shall be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act.

Sec. 11. Section 3, chapter 299, Laws of 1981 and RCW 13.40.025 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is established a juvenile disposition standards commission to propose disposition standards to the legislature in accordance with RCW 13.40.030 and perform the other responsibilities set forth in this chapter.

(2) The commission shall be composed of the secretary or the secretary's designee and the following eight members appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by the senate: (a) A superior court judge; (b) a prosecuting attorney or deputy prosecuting attorney; (c) a law enforcement officer; (d) an administrator of juvenile court services; (e) a public defender actively practicing in juvenile court; and (f) three other persons who have demonstrated significant interest in the adjudication and disposition of juvenile offenders. In making the appointments, the governor shall seek the recommendations of the association of superior court judges in respect to the member who is a superior court judge; of Washington prosecutors in respect to the prosecuting attorney or deputy prosecuting attorney member; of the Washington association of sheriffs and police chiefs in respect to the member who is a law enforcement officer; of juvenile court administrators in respect to the member who is a juvenile court administrator; and of the state bar association in respect to the public defender member.

(3) The secretary or the secretary's designee shall serve as chairman of the commission.

(4) The secretary shall serve on the commission during the secretary's tenure as secretary of the department. The term of the remaining members of the commission shall be three years. The initial terms shall be determined by lot conducted at the commission's first meeting as follows: (a) Four members shall serve a two-year term; and (b) four members shall serve a three-year term. In the event of a vacancy, the appointing authority shall designate a new member to complete the remainder of the unexpired term.

(5) Commission members (~~shall serve without compensation but~~) shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now or hereafter amended~~). Members shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act.

(6) The commission's first meeting shall be held prior to January 1, 1982. Thereafter, the commission shall meet at least once every six months.

Sec. 12. Section 15.24.050, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 12, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.24.050 are each amended to read as follows:

In the event a position becomes vacant due to resignation, disqualification, death, or for any other reason, such position until the next annual meeting shall be filled by vote of the remaining members of the commission. At such annual meeting a commissioner shall be elected to fill the balance of the unexpired term.

A majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business and the carrying out of the duties of ~~((said))~~ the commission.

Each member of the commission shall ~~((receive a sum to be determined by the commission but not more than twenty dollars per day for each day spent in actual attendance on or traveling to and from meetings of the commission, or on special assignment for the commission, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for actual travel expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this chapter. Employees of the commission may also be reimbursed for actual travel expenses when out of state on official commission business.

Sec. 13. Section 10, chapter 129, Laws of 1969 as amended by section 13, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.26.100 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the commission shall ~~((receive payment to be determined by the commission not to exceed twenty dollars per day for each day spent in actual attendance at commission meetings, or on traveling to and from meetings of the commission, or on special assignments for the commission, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for actual travel expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this chapter. Employees of the commission may also be reimbursed for actual travel expenses when out of state on official commission business.

Sec. 14. Section 15.28.090, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 14, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.28.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the commission shall ~~((receive the sum of twenty dollars per day for each day spent in actual attendance on or in traveling to and from meetings of the commission or on special assignment for the commission, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for actual travel expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this chapter. Employees of the commission may also be reimbursed for actual travel expenses when out of state on official commission business.

Sec. 15. Section 15.44.038, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 15, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.44.038 are each amended to read as follows:

A majority of the commission members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business and the performance of all duties of the commission. Each member shall ~~((receive a sum not to exceed thirty-five dollars a day for each day spent in actual attendance at or traveling to and from meetings of the commission or when conducting business of the commission as authorized by the commission, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses at the rates allowed by RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 16. Section 27, chapter 256, Laws of 1961 as amended by section 19, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.65.270 are each amended to read as follows:

In the event of a vacancy on the board, the remaining members shall select a qualified person to fill the unexpired term. A majority of the voting members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business and the carrying out of all duties of the board. Each member of the board shall ~~((receive a sum to be specified in the marketing agreement or order not in excess of thirty-five dollars per day for each day spent in actual attendance on or traveling to and from meetings of the board or on special assignment for the board, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses at the rates allowed state employees in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 17. Section 15.66.130, chapter 11, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 20, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.66.130 are each amended to read as follows:

Each commodity commission shall hold such regular meetings as the marketing order may prescribe or that the commission by resolution may prescribe, together with such special meetings that may be called in accordance with provisions of its resolutions upon reasonable notice to all members thereof. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business of the commission. In the event of a vacancy in an elected or appointed position on the commission, the remaining elected members of the commission shall select a qualified person to fill the unexpired term.

Each member of the commission shall ~~((receive a specified sum as provided in the marketing order but not in excess of thirty-five dollars per day for each day spent in actual attendance at or traveling to and from meetings of the commission or on special assignments for the commission, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 18. Section 8, chapter 61, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 21, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 15.76.170 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a fairs commission to consist of the director of agriculture as ex officio member and chairman, and seven members appointed by the director to be persons who are interested in fair activities; at least three of whom shall be from the east side of the Cascades and three from the west side of the Cascades and one member at large. The first appointment shall be: Three for a one year term, two for a two year term, and two for a three year term, and thereafter the appointments shall be for three year terms.

Appointed members of the commission shall ~~((receive thirty-five dollars for each day actually spent on commission business plus))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses, in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)) payable on proper vouchers submitted to and approved by the director, and payable from that portion of the state fair fund set aside for administrative costs under this chapter. The commission shall meet at the call of the chairman, but at least annually. It shall be the duty of the commission to act as an advisory committee to the director, to assist in the preparation of the merit rating used in determining allocations to be made to fairs, and to perform such other duties as may be required by the director from time to time.

Sec. 19. Section 6, chapter 133, Laws of 1969 as amended by section 22, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 16.67.070 are each amended to read as follows:

In the event a position on the commission becomes vacant due to resignation, disqualification, death, or for any other reason, the unexpired term of such position shall be filled by the governor forthwith.

Each member of the commission shall ~~((receive the sum of twenty-five dollars for each day spent in actual attendance on or traveling to and from meetings of the commission, or on special assignment for the commission, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 3 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 20. Section 7, chapter 226, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 22, chapter 234, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.04.080 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board shall be ~~((paid forty-four dollars for each day or portion thereof spent in the discharge of his official duties))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of such duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 21. Section 3, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 27, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.08.120 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a state board of registration for architects, to consist of five members who shall be appointed by the governor, each of whom shall have been a resident of this state for at least eight years and shall have at least eight years' experience in the practice of architecture as a licensed or registered architect in responsible charge of architectural work or responsible charge of architectural teaching immediately preceding appointment.

The members of the first board shall serve for the following terms:

One member for one year, one member for two years, one member for three years, one member for four years, and one member for five years, from the date of their appointment, or until their successors are duly appointed and qualified. Every member of the board shall receive a certificate of his appointment from the governor and before beginning his term of office shall file with the secretary of state his written oath or affirmation for the faithful discharge of his official duties. On the expiration of the term of each member, the governor shall appoint a successor to serve for a term of five years or until his successor has been appointed and qualified.

The governor may remove any member of the board for cause. Vacancies in the board for any reason shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.

Members shall ~~((receive twenty-five dollars for each day actually performing board duties or traveling on board business))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this chapter in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

**Sec. 22. Section 11, chapter 101, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 28, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.055 are each amended to read as follows:*

The secretary shall have a full-time position with a salary to conform with standards set by the department of licensing for similar positions.

Each member of the examining committee shall ~~((receive as compensation twenty-five dollars for each day's attendance at meetings of the committee))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act. Members including the secretary shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the actual performance of their duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

**Sec. 22. was vetoed, see message at end of chapter.*

**Sec. 23. Section 5, chapter 101, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 29, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.140 are each amended to read as follows:*

A hearing board is hereby established for the purpose of hearing all charges of violations of any of the provisions of this chapter. The hearing board shall consist of three members to be appointed by the governor in the following manner: Two members, who meet the same requirements as members of the board of examiners, and one member unaffiliated with the barber profession. The first term shall be: One for six years, one for four years, and one for two years; thereafter, the terms shall be for six years and until a successor is appointed and qualified. The governor shall fill any vacancy within ninety days after it occurs by an appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term.

The hearing board shall select one of its members as its chairman and meetings shall be held as often as shall be deemed necessary to perform its duties. All members shall be present before business may be transacted.

Each member of the board shall ~~((receive as compensation for this attendance at hearings or other proper meetings twenty-five dollars for each day or part day in attendance;))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the performance of duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

The director of licensing shall exercise direct supervision over the hearing board, and the board shall file a report to the director immediately after each session, outlining the action taken by said board.

Before any license is revoked, or suspended, or any fines levied, the licensee must be given notice in writing of the charge or charges against him. At a day specified in said notice, at least twenty days after the service thereof, he must be afforded a fair hearing by the hearing board, and given full opportunity to produce testimony in his behalf and to confront the witnesses against him. Such charges shall be verified with the oath of the person making same, and a copy thereof shall be served in the manner provided by law for service of summons in civil actions.

The hearing shall be conducted by the hearing board at a date, time, and place as designated by the director. The hearing board shall be the sole judge of the charge or charges and the evidence produced, and the decision of any two members of the board shall be the decision of the board. If the charges are sustained in the judgment of the board, it may direct the revocation or suspension of such license, or a fine, or both as provided by this law.

The director of licensing is hereby granted the right of subpoena to require the attendance of witnesses and the production of pertinent records; such witnesses shall be entitled to fees and mileage as provided by law.

Any person feeling himself aggrieved by the fine, revocation, or suspension under this chapter, shall have the right to appeal from the decision of the hearing board to the superior court of the county in which he maintains his place of business.

*Sec. 23. was vetoed, see message at end of chapter.

***Sec. 24. Section 2, chapter 168, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 12, chapter 225, Laws of 1982 and RCW 18.18.104 are each amended to read as follows:**

(1) The secretary of the examining committee shall keep a record of all the proceedings of the committee. The committee shall meet in order to hold examinations and to conduct any other proper business. The committee shall set a schedule for such meetings a year in advance. The principal office of the committee shall be and is hereby established in Olympia, Washington. A majority of the committee in a duly assembled meeting may exercise all the powers devolving upon the committee. For any urgent purpose a special meeting may be called. Notice from the secretary signed by three members of the committee may convene the committee for a special meeting. The secretary shall notify each licensed cosmetology school by mail with a specific agenda. Only business specified in the notice shall be transacted. The secretary shall arrange for and conduct all examinations called for under the provisions of this chapter. The secretary shall deliver all records and findings of the examining committee as a result of examinations and hearings to the director.

(2) The secretary shall have a full-time position with a salary to conform with standards set by the department of licensing for similar positions. The secretary shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the actual performance of his duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended. Each appointed~~). Members of the committee shall (~~receive as compensation forty-five dollars for each day in which the member is officially engaged in business or duties of the committee~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~): PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That all salaries, compensation, and travel expenses shall come from the license and application fees collected pursuant to this chapter.

***Sec. 24. was vetoed, see message at end of chapter.**

***Sec. 25. Section 14, chapter 3, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. as last amended by section 9, chapter 75, Laws of 1977 and RCW 18.18.251 are each amended to read as follows:**

A hearing board is hereby established and shall consist of three members to be appointed by the governor in the following manner: One member qualified by at least six years' experience in the cosmetology industry for a six year term; one member from licensed Washington state cosmetology schools for a four year term; and one member who is unaffiliated with any of the foregoing associations for a two year term. Thereafter the terms of the members shall be for six years and until their successors are appointed and qualified. The governor shall fill any vacancy on the board within ninety days after it occurs by an appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term.

The board shall select one of its members as its chairman. Meetings shall be held as often as shall be necessary for the board to perform its duties. All members shall be present before business may be transacted. The director of licensing shall exercise direct supervision over the board's activities and the board shall file such periodic and special reports with the director outlining its activities as the director may require.

*Each member of the board shall ~~((receive as compensation for his attendance at hearings or other proper meetings thirty-five dollars for each day or part of a day's attendance))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~; **PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That all compensation and travel expenses shall come from the license and application fees collected pursuant to this chapter.***

*Sec. 25. was vetoed. see message at end of chapter.

Sec. 26. Section 9, chapter 21, Laws of 1982 and RCW 18.22.014 are each amended to read as follows:

The board shall meet at the places and times it determines and as often as necessary to discharge its duties. The board shall elect a chairperson from among its members. ~~((each))~~ Members shall ~~((receive fifty dollars a day for each day actually spent in the performance of official duties and in traveling to and from the place of performance))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act in addition to travel expenses provided by RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 27. Section 2, chapter 53, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 32, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.017 are each amended to read as follows:

The board shall meet as soon as practicable after appointment, and shall elect a chairman and a secretary from its members. Meetings shall be held at least once a year at such place as the director of licensing shall determine, and at such other times and places as he deems necessary.

The board may make such rules and regulations, not inconsistent with this chapter, as it deems necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

Each member shall ~~((receive thirty-five dollars a day for each day actually engaged in conducting examinations or in the preparation of examination questions or the grading of examination papers, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~, all to be paid out of the general fund on vouchers approved by the director, but not to exceed in the aggregate the amount of fees collected as provided in this chapter.

Members of the board shall be immune from suit in any action, civil or criminal, based upon their duties or other official acts performed in good faith as members of such board.

Sec. 28. Section 2, chapter 46, Laws of 1980 and RCW 18.26.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the board may be ~~((paid thirty-five dollars for each day spent in performing their duties as members of the board))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and may be paid their travel expenses while engaged in the business of the board in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~, with such reimbursement to be paid out of the general fund on vouchers signed by the director of licensing.

Sec. 29. Section 14, chapter 168, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.29.031 are each amended to read as follows:

The director of licensing shall appoint a committee of three licensed dental hygienists to prepare and conduct examinations for dental hygiene licensure. The committee shall require an applicant for licensure to pass an examination consisting of written and practical tests upon such subjects and of such scope as the committee determines. The standards for passage of the examination shall be set by the committee. Members of the committee shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

At least two examinations shall be given each calendar year in conjunction with examinations for licensure of dentists under chapter 18.32 RCW.

Sec. 30. Section 3, chapter 93, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 3, chapter 38, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.32.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The members of the board shall each ~~((receive as compensation the sum of twenty-five dollars for each day actually engaged in the duties of the office, and))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in attending the meetings of the board in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Board members shall be compensated and reimbursed pursuant to this section for their activities in administering a multi-state licensing examination pursuant to the board's compact or agreement with another state or states or with organizations formed by several states: PROVIDED, That any compensation or reimbursement received by a board member from another state, or organization formed by several states, for such member's services in administering a multi-state licensing examination, shall be deposited in the state general fund.

Sec. 31. Section 10, chapter 5, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 18.32.600 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the board shall be ~~((paid thirty-five dollars per day for time spent in performing their duties as members of the board))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now or hereafter amended))~~ while engaged in business of the board.

Sec. 32. Section 5, chapter 43, Laws of 1957 and RCW 18.34.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The examining committee shall consist of three persons primarily engaged in the business of dispensing opticians and who currently hold a valid license under this chapter. Members of the committee shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 33. Section 15, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. as last amended by section 12, chapter 39, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.35.150 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is created hereby the council on hearing aids. The council shall consist of nine members to be appointed by the governor.

(2) Members of the council shall be residents of this state. Five members shall be persons experienced in the fitting of hearing aids who shall hold valid licenses under this chapter. One member shall be a medical doctor specializing in diseases of the ear. One member shall be a nondispensing audiologist. Two members shall represent the public.

(3) The term of office of a member is three years, except that the governor may appoint the initial members to one or two year terms to ensure an orderly succession of members. A member shall continue to serve until a successor has been appointed and qualifies. Before a member's term expires, the governor shall appoint a successor to assume his duties at the expiration of his predecessor's term. A vacancy in the office of a member shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.

(4) The chairman of the council shall be elected from the membership of the council at the beginning of each year.

(5) The council shall meet at least once each year, at a place, day and hour determined by the council, unless otherwise directed by a majority of council members. The council shall also meet at such other times and places as are requested by the department or by three members of the council.

(6) Members of the council shall be compensated ~~((for their services at the rate of thirty-five dollars per day for each day or part thereof spent conducting meetings, hearings, or other official business;))~~ in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 34. Section 9, chapter 93, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. as amended by section 11, chapter 43, Laws of 1981 and RCW 18.39.175 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board of funeral directors and embalmers shall ~~((receive compensation of twenty-five dollars for each board meeting attended, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in connection with board duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

The state board of funeral directors and embalmers shall have the following duties and responsibilities:

(1) To be responsible for the preparation, conducting, and grading of examinations of applicants for funeral director and embalmer licenses;

(2) To certify to the director the results of examinations of applicants and certify the applicant as having "passed" or "failed";

(3) To make findings and recommendations to the director on any and all matters relating to the enforcement of this chapter;

(4) To adopt, promulgate, and enforce reasonable rules; and

(5) To suspend or revoke any license, after proper hearing and notice to the licensee, if the licensee has committed any of the following:

(a) A crime involving moral turpitude and resulting in a conviction;

(b) Unprofessional conduct, which includes:

(i) Misrepresentation or fraud in the conduct of the business or the profession of a funeral director or embalmer;

(ii) False or misleading advertising as a funeral director or embalmer;

(iii) Solicitation of human dead bodies by the licensee, his agents, assistants or employees, whether the solicitation occurs after death or while death is impending. This chapter does not prohibit general advertising or the sale of pre-need funeral plans;

(iv) Employment by the licensee of persons known as "cappers," "steerers," or "solicitors" or other persons to obtain funeral directing or embalming business;

(v) Employment directly or indirectly of any person for the purpose of calling upon individuals or institutions by whose influence dead human bodies may be turned over to a particular funeral director or embalmer;

(vi) The buying of business by the licensee, his agents, assistants or employees, or the direct or indirect payment or offer of payment of a commission by the licensee, his agents, assistants, or employees, for the purpose of securing business;

(vii) Aiding or abetting an unlicensed person to practice funeral directing or embalming;

(viii) Solicitation or acceptance by a licensee of any commission or bonus or rebate in consideration of recommending or causing a dead human body to be disposed of in any crematory, mausoleum, or cemetery;

(ix) Using any casket or part of a casket which has previously been used as a receptacle for, or in connection with, the burial or other disposition of a dead human body without the written consent of next of kin;

(x) Violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or the rules in support thereof;

(xi) Violation of any state law or municipal or county ordinance or regulation affecting the handling, custody, care, or transportation of dead human bodies;

(xii) Fraud or misrepresentation in obtaining a license;

(xiii) Refusing to promptly surrender the custody of a dead human body upon the express order of the person lawfully entitled to its custody;

(xiv) Selling, or offering for sale, a share, certificate, or an interest in the business of any funeral director or embalmer, or in any corporation, firm, or association owning or operating a funeral establishment, which promises or purports to give to purchasers a right to the services of the funeral director, embalmer, or corporation, firm, or association at a charge or cost less than that offered or given to the public; or

(xv) Knowingly concealing information concerning a violation of this chapter.

Sec. 35. Section 3, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as amended by section 37, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.43.030 are each amended to read as follows:

A state board of registration for professional engineers and land surveyors is hereby created which shall exercise all of the powers and perform all of the duties conferred upon it by this chapter. The board shall consist of five registered professional engineers, who shall be appointed by the governor and shall have the qualifications as hereinafter required. The members of the first board shall be appointed within thirty days after (~~the effective date of this act~~) June 11, 1947, to serve for the following terms: One member for one year, one member for two years, one member for three years, one member for four years, and one member for five years, from the date of their appointment, or until their successors are duly appointed and qualified. Every member of the board shall receive a certificate of his appointment from the governor and before beginning his term of office shall file with the secretary of state his written oath or affirmation for the faithful discharge of his official duty. On the expiration of the term of any member, the governor shall in the manner hereinbefore provided appoint for a term of five years a registered professional engineer having the qualifications as hereinafter required, to take the place of the member whose term on said board is about to expire. Each member shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which such member is appointed or until a successor shall have been duly appointed and shall have qualified.

Each member of the board shall be a citizen of the United States and shall have been a resident of this state for at least five years immediately

preceding his appointment, and shall have been engaged in the practice of the profession of engineering for at least twelve years, and shall have been in responsible charge of important engineering work for at least five years. Responsible charge of engineering teaching may be construed as responsible charge of important engineering work.

Each member of the board shall ~~((receive the sum of twenty-five dollars each day when actually attending to the work of the board or any of its committees and for the time spent in necessary travel;))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and, in addition thereto, shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this chapter in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

The governor may remove any member of the board for misconduct, incompetency, or neglect of duty. Vacancies in the membership of the board shall be filled for the unexpired term by appointment by the governor as hereinabove provided.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 36. There is added to chapter 18.44 RCW a new section to read as follows:

There is established an escrow commission of the state of Washington, to consist of the director of licensing as ex officio member and chairman, and five members who shall act as advisors to the director as to the needs of the escrow profession and who shall be appointed by the governor, each of whom shall have been a resident of this state for at least five years and shall have at least five years experience in the practice of escrow as an escrow agent or as a person in responsible charge of escrow transactions.

The members of the first commission shall serve for the following terms: One member for one year, one member for two years, one member for three years, one member for four years, and one member for five years, from the date of their appointment, or until their successors are duly appointed and qualified. Every member of the commission shall receive a certificate of appointment from the governor and before beginning the member's term of office shall file with the secretary of state a written oath or affirmation for the faithful discharge of the member's official duties. On the expiration of the term of each member, the governor shall appoint a successor to serve for a term of five years or until the member's successor has been appointed and qualified.

The governor may remove any member of the commission for cause. Vacancies in the commission for any reason shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.

Members shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act, and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this chapter in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 37. Section 29, chapter 156, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 18.44.215 are each amended to read as follows:

The ~~((four))~~ escrow commission members shall each ~~((receive fifty dollars per day for each day engaged in official business of the commission; plus))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided for state officials and employees in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060, when called into session by the director or when otherwise engaged in the business of the commission.

**Sec. 38. Section 20, chapter 153, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.44.900 are each amended to read as follows:*

RCW 2.48.180 does not apply to certified escrow agents and escrow officers, but nothing in this chapter shall be so construed as to authorize any escrow agent or escrow officer, or ((his)) their employees or agents, to engage in the practice of law, and nothing in this chapter shall be so construed as to impose any additional liability on any depository authorized by this chapter and the receipt or acquittance of the persons so paid by such depository shall be a valid and sufficient release and discharge of such depository.

**Sec. 38. was vetoed, see message at end of chapter.*

Sec. 39. Section 11, chapter 117, Laws of 1951 as last amended by section 65, chapter 211, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 18.51.100 are each amended to read as follows:

The governor shall appoint ~~((an))~~ a nursing home advisory council. The council shall be comprised of:

~~((a))~~ (1) Five members of the general public who are not owners or employees of a nursing home or engaged by a nursing home. Of these five members, one shall be a representative of senior citizens, one shall be a representative of a health care consumer group, and one shall be a licensed certified public accountant;

~~((b))~~ (2) Three members who are nursing home operators, one of whom shall operate a nonprofit nursing home;

~~((c))~~ (3) One member of the association of nursing home administrators;

~~((d))~~ (4) One member of the state medical association; and

~~((e))~~ (5) One member of the state nurses association.

The governor shall choose one of the five members from the general public to be chairman of the advisory nursing home council. Each member of the council shall receive ~~((twenty-five dollars per day as compensation for each day spent upon official business of the council and))~~ travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Each member shall hold office for a term of four years, except that any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which his predecessor was appointed shall be appointed for the remainder of such term and the terms of office of the

members first taking office shall expire, as designated at the time of appointment, two at the end of the first year, three at the end of the second year, three at the end of the third year, and two at the end of the fourth year after the date of appointment. Thereafter all appointments shall be for four years. The council shall meet as frequently as the chairman deems necessary, but not less than quarterly each year. Upon request by four or more members, it shall be the duty of the chairman to call a meeting of the council.

Sec. 40. Section 6, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as last amended by section 45, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.52.060 are each amended to read as follows:

The board shall elect from its membership a chairman, vice chairman, and secretary-treasurer, and shall adopt rules and regulations to govern its proceedings. The chairman or four board members by signed written request may call board meetings upon reasonable written notice to each member. Each member shall ~~((receive twenty-five dollars for each day or major portion thereof actually spent on official business, plus))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)). A full-time or part-time executive secretary for the board may be employed by the director through the department of licensing, and the director through the department of licensing shall provide the executive secretary and the board with such secretarial, administrative, and other assistance as may be required to carry out the purposes of this chapter. Employment of an executive secretary shall be subject to confirmation by the board. The position of executive secretary shall be exempt from the requirements of chapter 41.06 RCW.

Sec. 41. Section 13, chapter 25, Laws of 1963 as last amended by section 39, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.54.130 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the board are entitled to receive their travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Each member of the board will also be ~~((paid twenty-five dollars for each day or portion thereof spent in discharge of his official duties))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act.

Sec. 42. Section 2, chapter 117, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.57.003 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created an agency of the state of Washington, consisting of seven individuals appointed by the governor to be known as the Washington state board of osteopathic medicine and surgery.

The members of the first board shall be appointed to serve the following terms from the date of their appointment: Two members for two years, two members for three years, and three members for five years, or until

their successors are appointed and fully qualified. The respective terms of office of such initial appointees shall be designated by the governor at the time of appointment. On expiration of the term of any member, the governor shall appoint for a period of five years an individual of similar qualifications to take the place of such member. Each member shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which such member is appointed or until a successor shall have been appointed and shall have qualified. Initial appointments shall be made and vacancies in the membership of the board shall be filled for the unexpired term by appointment by the governor.

Each member of the board shall be a citizen of the United States and must be an actual resident of this state. One member shall be a consumer who has neither a financial nor a fiduciary relationship to a health care delivery system, and every other member must have been in active practice as a licensed osteopathic physician and surgeon in this state for at least five years immediately preceding appointment.

The board shall meet as soon as practicable after appointment and elect a chairman and a secretary from its members. Meetings of the board shall be held at least four times a year and at such place as the board shall determine and at such other times and places as the board deems necessary.

It shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of all the members of the board to take any official action.

Each member of the board (~~(may receive the sum of twenty-five dollars per day as compensation for each day or fraction thereof spent on official business and))~~ shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Any member of the board may be removed by the governor for neglect of duty, misconduct, malfeasance or misfeasance in office, or upon written request of two-thirds of the physicians licensed under this chapter and in active practice in this state.

Sec. 43. Section 2, chapter 98, Laws of 1935 as last amended by section 1, chapter 90, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.64.003 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the board shall meet at such places and times as it shall determine and as often as necessary to discharge the duties imposed upon it. The board shall elect a chairperson and a vice chairperson from among its members. Each member shall (~~receive forty dollars a day for each day actually spent in the performance of his or her official duties and in going to and returning from the place of such performance, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 44. Section 2, chapter 284, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 52, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 18.71.015 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a board of medical examiners consisting of six individuals licensed to practice medicine in the state of Washington and one individual who is not a physician, to be known as the Washington state board of medical examiners.

The board shall be appointed by the governor. The members of the first board shall be appointed within thirty days after March 21, 1961, to serve the following terms: One member for one year, one member for two years, one member for three years, one member for four years, one member for five years, from the date of their appointment, or until their successors are duly appointed and qualified. On expiration of the term of any member, the governor shall appoint for a period of five years an individual of similar qualifications to take the place of such member. Each member shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which such member is appointed or until a successor shall have been appointed and shall have qualified.

Each member of the board shall be a citizen of the United States, must be an actual resident of this state, and, if a physician, must have been licensed to practice medicine in this state for at least five years.

The board shall meet as soon as practicable after appointment and elect a chairman and a secretary from its members. Meetings shall be held at least four times a year and at such place as the board shall determine and at such other times and places as the board deems necessary.

It shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the board to carry any motion or resolution, to adopt any rule, to pass any measure, or to authorize or deny the issuance of any certificate.

Each member of the board shall (~~receive the sum of forty dollars for each day actually attending to the work of the board or any of its committees and for the time spent in necessary travel;~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and in addition thereto shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in carrying out the duties of the board in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~). Any such expenses shall be paid from funds appropriated to the department of licensing.

Any member of the board may be removed by the governor for neglect of duty, misconduct, or malfeasance or misfeasance in office.

Vacancies in the membership of the board shall be filled for the unexpired term by appointment by the governor.

Sec. 45. Section 10, chapter 202, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 3, chapter 111, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 18.72.100 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the board shall be ~~((paid fifty dollars for each day spent in performing their duties as members of the board))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be repaid their travel expenses while engaged in business of the board in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Such compensation and reimbursement for expenses shall be paid out of the general fund on vouchers approved by the director of licensing.

Sec. 46. Section 2, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 3, chapter 116, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.74.020 are each amended to read as follows:

The state board of physical therapy is hereby created. The board shall consist of five members who shall be appointed by the governor. Of the initial appointments, two shall be appointed for a term of two years, two for a term of three years, and one for a term of four years. Thereafter, all appointments shall be for terms of four years. Four members of the board shall be physical therapists licensed under this chapter and residing in this state, shall have not less than five years' experience in the practice of physical therapy, and shall be actively engaged in practice within two years of appointment. The fifth member shall be appointed from the public at large, shall have an interest in the rights of consumers of health services, and shall not be or have been a member of any other licensing board, a licensee of any health occupation board, an employee of any health facility nor derive his primary livelihood from the provision of health services at any level of responsibility. In the event that a member of the board for any reason cannot complete his term of office, another appointment shall be made by the governor in accordance with the procedure stated above to fill the remainder of the term. No member may serve for more than two successive four-year terms.

The director of licensing shall furnish such secretarial, clerical and other assistance as the board may require. Each member of the board shall, in addition to travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended, receive compensation for each day actually engaged in the discharge of his duties; PROVIDED; HOWEVER, That such compensation shall not exceed fifty dollars per day))~~, be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act.

Sec. 47. Section 4, chapter 222, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 5, chapter 55, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.78.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Each board member shall ~~((receive fifty dollars for each day engaged in the discharge of his or her duties as a member of the board;))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be paid travel expenses while away from home in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. The members of the board shall appoint a chairman and a secretary from among its entire

members, who shall serve until his or her successor is appointed by the board.

Sec. 48. Section 21, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 10, chapter 168, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.83.051 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board shall ~~((receive the sum of twenty-five dollars for each day actually attending to the work of the board or any of its committees and for the time spent in necessary travel;))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and in addition thereto shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in carrying out the duties of the board in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 49. Section 14, chapter 252, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 49, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.85.080 are each amended to read as follows:

The six board members of the commission shall ~~((receive as compensation twenty-five dollars for each day actually spent on official business))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act, plus travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~ when they shall be called into session by the director or when presiding at examinations for applicants for licenses or when otherwise engaged in the business of the commission.

Sec. 50. Section 8, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 12, chapter 75, Laws of 1977 and RCW 18.88.080 are each amended to read as follows:

The board may adopt such rules and regulations not inconsistent with the law, as may be necessary to enable it to carry into effect the provisions of this chapter. The board shall approve curricula and shall establish criteria for minimum standards for schools preparing persons for licensure under this chapter. It shall keep a record of all its proceedings and make such reports to the governor as may be required. The board shall define by regulation what constitutes specialized and advanced levels of nursing practice as recognized by the medical and nursing professions. The board may adopt regulations in response to questions put to it by professional health associations, nursing practitioners, and consumers in this state concerning the authority of various categories of nursing practitioners to perform particular acts.

The board shall approve such schools of nursing as meet the requirements of this chapter and the board, and the board shall approve establishment of basic nursing education programs and shall establish criteria as to the need for and the size of a program and the type of program and the geographical location. The board shall establish criteria for proof of reasonable currency of knowledge and skill as a basis for safe practice after three

years nonpracticing status. The board shall establish criteria for licensure by endorsement. The board shall examine all applications for registration under this chapter, and shall certify to the director for licensing duly qualified applicants.

The department shall furnish to the board such secretarial, clerical and other assistance as may be necessary to effectively administer the provisions of this chapter. Each member of the board shall, in addition to travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~) while away from home, (~~receive twenty-five dollars compensation for each and every day engaged in the discharge of his or her duties~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act.

Sec. 51. Section 13, chapter 124, Laws of 1907 as last amended by section 4, chapter 102, Laws of 1983 and RCW 18.92.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board shall (~~receive twenty-five dollars per day as compensation for each day spent upon official business of the board, and~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~). No expense may be incurred by members of the board except in connection with board meetings without prior approval of the director.

Sec. 52. Section 5, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 54, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The members of the first board shall serve for the following terms:

One member for one year, one member for two years, one member for three years, one member for four years, and one member for five years from the date of appointment or until successors are duly appointed and qualified. Every member of the board shall receive a certificate of his appointment from the governor, and before beginning his term of office shall file with the secretary of state his written oath or affirmation for the faithful discharge of his official duties. On the expiration of the term of each member, the governor shall appoint a successor to serve for a term of five years, or until his successor has been appointed and qualified: PROVIDED, That no member shall serve more than ten consecutive years.

The governor may remove any member of the board for cause. Vacancies in the board for any reason shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term. In carrying out the provisions of this chapter, the members of the board shall (~~receive twenty-five dollars per day as compensation~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses according to the provisions of RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~), such funds to be provided from the landscape architects' account in the state general fund.

Sec. 53. Section 2, chapter 280, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 57, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 18.108.020 are each amended to read as follows:

The state massage examining board is hereby created. The board shall consist of three members who shall be appointed by the governor for a term of three years each. ~~((Each member))~~ Members shall be ((a)) residents of this state and shall have not less than three years experience in the practice of massage immediately preceding their appointment and shall be actively engaged in the practice of massage during their incumbency. Within thirty days after September 8, 1975, three members shall be appointed by the governor to serve one, two, and three years respectively. In the event that a member cannot complete his term of office, another appointment shall be made by the governor in accordance with the procedures stated in this section to fill the remainder of the term. No member may serve more than two successive terms and shall qualify and receive a license pursuant to ((section 7, chapter 280, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess.)) this chapter within ninety days of their appointment.

Subject to the approval of the director, the board shall have the power to promulgate rules and regulations not inconsistent with the law and which may be necessary for the performance of its duties. It shall be the duty of the board to pass upon the qualifications of applicants for licenses, prepare the necessary examination questions and practical demonstrations, conduct examinations from time to time in such places as the director designates, and to determine the applicants who successfully passed the examination, and in turn notify the director of such determinations.

Each member of the board shall ~~((receive as compensation twenty-five dollars for each day's attendance at meetings of the board))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act. Members shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the actual performance of their duties, as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 54. Section 22, chapter 253, Laws of 1971 ex. sess as amended by section 58, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 19.16.310 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board appointed by the governor shall ~~((receive as compensation twenty-five dollars for each day, or portion thereof, in which he is actually engaged in the official business and duties of the board))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and in addition thereto shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred while on official business of the board and in attending meetings thereof, in accordance with the provisions of RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 55. Section 7, chapter 96, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as amended by section 59, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 19.27.070 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby established a state building code advisory council to be appointed by the governor.

(1) The state building code advisory council shall consist of the director of the department of labor and industries, or his designee, and the insurance commissioner, or his designee, and thirteen additional members who shall be broadly representative of the general public, local government, and of the industries and professions concerned with building design and construction. The council may include state officials as ex officio, nonvoting members. The board shall report annually to the governor and the legislature on the operation and administration of this chapter.

(2) Members shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~).

Sec. 56. Section 5, chapter 207, Laws of 1963 as last amended by section 60, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 19.28.065 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created an electrical advisory board, consisting of seven members to be appointed by the governor with the advice of the director of labor and industries as herein provided. It shall be the purpose and function of the board to advise the director on all matters pertaining to the enforcement of this chapter including, but not limited to standards of electrical installation, minimum inspection procedures, and the adoption of rules and regulations pertaining to the electrical inspection division: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That no rules or regulations shall be amended or repealed until the electrical advisory board has first had an opportunity to consider any proposed amendments or repeals and had an opportunity to make recommendations to the director relative thereto. The members of the electrical advisory board shall be selected and appointed as follows: One member shall be an employee or officer of a corporation or public agency generating or distributing electric power; one member shall be an employee or officer of a corporation or firm engaged in the business of making electrical installations; one member shall be an employee, or officer, or representative of a corporation or firm engaged in the business of manufacturing or distributing electrical materials, equipment, or devices; one member shall be a person not related to the electrical industry to represent the public; one member shall be a recognized electrician; one member shall be a licensed professional engineer qualified to do business in the state of Washington; and one member shall be the state chief electrical inspector. Each of the members except the public member and the chief electrical inspector shall be appointed by the governor from among a list of individuals nominated by

nonprofit organizations or associations representing individuals, corporations, or firms engaged in the business classification from which such member shall be selected. The regular term of each member shall be four years: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, The original board shall be appointed for the following terms: The first term of the member representing a corporation or public agency generating or distributing electric power shall serve four years; the member representing the installer of electrical equipment or appliances shall serve three years; the member representing a manufacturer or distributor of electrical equipment or devices shall serve three years; the member representing the public shall serve two years; the member selected as the recognized electrician shall serve for two years; the member selected as the licensed professional electrical engineer shall serve for one year. Thereafter, the governor shall appoint or reappoint board members for terms of four years and to fill vacancies created by the completion of the terms of the original members. The governor shall also fill vacancies caused by death, resignation, or otherwise for the unexpired term of such members by appointing their successors from the same business classification. The same procedure shall be followed in making such subsequent appointments as is provided for the original appointments. The board, at this first meeting shall elect one of its members to serve as chairman. Any person acting as the chief electrical inspector shall serve as secretary of the board during his tenure as chief state inspector. Meetings of the board shall be called at the discretion of the director of labor and industries. Each member of the board shall ~~((be paid twenty-five dollars for each day or portion thereof that the board is in session and each member shall))~~ receive ~~((in addition thereto))~~ travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~ which shall be paid out of the electrical license fund, upon vouchers approved by the director of labor and industries.

Sec. 57. Section 2, chapter 188, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 79, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 19.28.123 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a board of electrical examiners consisting of nine members to be appointed by the governor. It shall be the purpose and function of this board to establish in addition to a general electrical contractors' license, such classifications of specialty electrical contractors' licenses as it deems appropriate with regard to individual sections pertaining to state adopted codes in chapter 19.28 RCW. In addition, it shall be the purpose and function of this board to establish and administer written examinations for general electrical contractors' qualifying certificates and the various specialty electrical contractors' qualifying certificates. Examinations shall be designed to reasonably insure that general and specialty electrical contractor's qualifying certificate holders are competent to engage in and supervise the work covered by this statute and their respective licenses. The examinations shall include questions from the following categories to assure

proper safety and protection for the general public: (1) Safety, (2) state electrical code, and (3) electrical theory. It shall be the further purpose and function of this board to advise the director as to the need of additional electrical inspectors and compliance officers to be utilized by the director on either a full-time or part-time employment basis. Meetings of the board shall be held quarterly on the first Monday of February, May, August, and November of each year. Each member of the board shall be ~~((paid twenty-five dollars for each day or portion thereof that the board is in session))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act, and each member shall also receive travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~, which shall be paid out of the electrical license fund, upon vouchers approved by the director of labor and industries.

Sec. 58. Section 1, chapter 5, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 66, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 27.04.020 are each amended to read as follows:

A state library commission is hereby created which shall consist of the superintendent of public instruction, who shall be ex officio chairman of ~~((said))~~ the commission, and four commissioners appointed by the governor, one of whom shall be a library trustee at the time of appointment and one a certified librarian actually engaged in library work at the time of appointment. The first appointments shall be for terms of one, two, three, and four years respectively, and thereafter one commissioner shall be appointed each year to serve for a four year term. Vacancies shall be filled by appointments for the unexpired terms. Each commissioner shall ~~((serve without salary or other compensation for his services, but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the actual performance of their duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 59. Section 11, chapter 119, Laws of 1935 as amended by section 12, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 and RCW 27.08.010 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created a state board for the certification of librarians, which shall consist of the state librarian, the executive officer of the department of librarianship of the University of Washington, and one other member to be appointed by the governor for a term of three years from a list of three persons nominated by the executive committee of the Washington library association. The members of the board shall ~~((serve without salary))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act, shall have authority to establish rules and regulations for their own government and procedure, and shall prescribe and hold examinations to test the qualifications of those seeking certificates as librarians.

(2) The board shall grant librarians' certificates without examination to applicants who are graduates of library schools accredited by the American library association for general library training, and shall grant certificates to other applicants when it has satisfied itself by examination that the applicant has attainments and abilities equivalent to those of a library school graduate and is qualified to carry on library work ably and efficiently.

(3) Any person not a graduate of a library school accredited by the American library association, but who has served as a librarian or a full-time professional assistant in any library in this state for at least one year or the equivalent thereof prior to midnight, June 12, 1935, shall be granted a librarian's certificate without examination, but such certificate shall be good only for the position specified therein, unless specifically extended by the board.

(4) The board shall require a fee of not less than one dollar nor more than five dollars to be paid by each applicant for a librarian's certificate. Money paid as fees shall be deposited with the state treasurer. All necessary expenses of the board shall be paid from funds appropriated by the legislature upon the presentation of proper vouchers approved by the board.

(5) After January 1, 1937, a library serving a community having over four thousand population shall not have in its employ, in the position of librarian or in any other full-time professional library position, a person who does not hold a librarian's certificate issued by the board.

(6) A full-time professional library position, as intended by this section, is one that requires, in the opinion of the state board for the certification of librarians, a knowledge of books and of library technique equivalent to that required for graduation from an accredited library school.

(7) The provisions in this section shall apply to every library serving a community having over four thousand population and to every library operated by the state or under its authority, including libraries of institutions of higher learning: PROVIDED, That nothing in this section shall apply to the state law library or to county law libraries.

Sec. 60. Section 28A.04.110, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 67, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28A.04.110 are each amended to read as follows:

The state board of education shall hold an annual meeting and such other regular meetings at such time and place within the state as the board shall determine and may hold such special meetings as may be deemed necessary for the transaction of public business, such special meetings to be called by the superintendent of public instruction, or by a majority of the board. The persons serving as members of the state board of education shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed by the superintendent of public instruction for travel expenses in

accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~) incurred in the performance of their duties which expenses shall be paid by the state treasurer on warrants out of funds appropriated or otherwise available, upon the order of the superintendent.

Sec. 61. Section 28A.92.050, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 71, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28A.92.050 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the commission from the state of Washington shall be paid, from funds appropriated by the legislature of the state of Washington for that purpose, (~~the sum of twenty-five dollars per day for each day or major part thereof devoted to the business of the commission, together with~~) travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended. In no event shall such commissioner's payments for other than travel expenses exceed fifteen hundred dollars in any one year~~). Such member may, regardless of any charter or statutory provision to the contrary, be an officer or employee holding another public position.

Sec. 62. Section 3, chapter 169, Laws of 1983 and RCW 28B.07.030 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The Washington higher education facilities authority is hereby established as a public body corporate and politic, with perpetual corporate succession, constituting an agency of the state of Washington exercising essential governmental functions. The authority is a "public body" within the meaning of RCW 39.53.010.

(2) The authority shall consist of seven members as follows: The governor, lieutenant governor, executive coordinator of the state council for postsecondary education, and four public members, one of whom shall be the president of a higher education institution at the time of appointment. The public members shall be residents of the state and appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by the senate, on the basis of their interest or expertise in the provision of higher education and the financing of higher education. The public members of the authority shall serve for terms of four years. The initial terms of the public members shall be staggered in a manner determined by the governor. In the event of a vacancy on the authority due to death, resignation, or removal of one of the public members, and upon the expiration of the term of any public member, the governor shall appoint a successor for a term expiring on the fourth anniversary of the successor's date of the appointment. If any of the state offices are abolished, the resulting vacancy on the authority shall be filled by the state officer who shall succeed substantially to the power and duties of the abolished office. Any public member of the authority may be removed by the governor for misfeasance, malfeasance, wilful neglect of duty, or any other cause after notice and a public hearing, unless such notice and hearing shall be expressly waived in writing.

(3) The governor shall serve as chairperson of the authority. The authority shall elect annually one of its members as secretary. If the governor shall be absent from a meeting of the authority, the secretary shall preside. However, the governor may designate an employee of the governor's office to act on the governor's behalf in all other respects during the absence of the governor at any meeting of the authority. If the designation is in writing and is presented to the person presiding at the meetings of the authority who is included in the designation, the vote of the designee has the same effect as if cast by the governor.

(4) Any person designated by resolution of the authority shall keep a record of the proceedings of the authority and shall be the custodian of all books, documents, and papers filed with the authority, the minute book or a journal of the authority, and the authority's official seal, if any. The person may cause copies to be made of all minutes and other records and documents of the authority, and may give certificates to the effect that such copies are true copies. All persons dealing with the authority may rely upon the certificates.

(5) Four members of the authority constitute a quorum. The authority may act on the basis of a motion except when authorizing the issuance and sale of bonds, in which case the authority shall act by resolution. Bond resolutions and other resolutions shall be adopted upon the affirmative vote of four members of the authority, and shall be signed by those members voting yes. Motions shall be adopted upon the affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum of members present at any meeting of the authority. All actions taken by the authority shall take effect immediately without need for publication or other public notice. A vacancy in the membership of the authority does not impair the power of the authority to act under this chapter.

(6) The members of the authority shall ~~((serve without compensation but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be entitled to reimbursement, solely from the funds of the authority, for travel expenses as determined by the authority incurred in the discharge of their duties under this chapter.

Sec. 63. Section 6, chapter 36, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 19, chapter 338, Laws of 1981 and RCW 28B.16.060 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created a state higher education personnel board composed of three members appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by the senate. The first such board shall be appointed within thirty days after the effective date of this chapter for terms of two, four, and six years. Each odd-numbered year thereafter the governor shall appoint a member for a six-year term. Persons so appointed shall have clearly demonstrated an interest and belief in the merit principle, shall not hold any other employment with the state, shall not have been an officer of a political party for a period of one year immediately prior to such appointment, and

shall not be or become a candidate for partisan elective public office during the term to which they are appointed.

(2) Each member of the board shall be ~~((paid fifty dollars for each day in which he has actually attended a meeting of the board officially held. The members of the board may receive any number of daily payments for official meetings of the board actually attended))~~ compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act. Members of the board shall also be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of their official duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

(3) At its first meeting following the appointment of all of its members, and annually thereafter, the board shall elect a chairman and vice chairman from among its members to serve one year. The presence of at least two members of the board shall constitute a quorum to transact business. A written public record shall be kept by the board of all actions of the board.

(4) The board shall appoint a personnel director who shall be the chief staff officer for the board. In preparing matters for consideration by the board and in coordinating the implementation of the board's rules and regulations, the personnel director shall work in conjunction with the campus personnel officers and their staffs at each institution of higher education, and in the case of community colleges, with the state board for community college education. When necessary, the personnel director may request the creation of task forces drawn from the four-year institutions of higher education, and representatives of the various state community colleges through the state board for community college education, for the accomplishment of any projects undertaken by the board. The director may employ necessary personnel for the board, and the board may appoint and compensate hearing officers to hear and conduct appeals. The board shall establish an office for the conduct of its business.

Sec. 64. Section 28B.50.050, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 9, chapter 30, Laws of 1982 1st ex. sess. and RCW 28B.50.050 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created the "state board for community college education", to consist of eight members, one from each congressional district, as now or hereafter existing, who shall be appointed by the governor, with the consent of the senate. The successors of the members initially appointed shall be appointed for terms of four years except that any persons appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of any term shall be appointed only for the remainder of such term. Each member shall serve until the appointment and qualification of his successor. All members shall be citizens and bona fide residents of the state. No member of the college board shall be, during his term of office, also a member of the state board of education, a member of a K-12 board, a member of the governing board of any public or private educational institution, a member of a community

college board of trustees, or an employee of any of the above boards, or have any direct pecuniary interest in education within this state.

The board shall not be deemed unlawfully constituted and a member of the board shall not be deemed ineligible to serve the remainder of the member's unexpired term on the board solely by reason of the establishment of new or revised boundaries for congressional districts.

~~((No))~~ Members of the college board shall ~~((receive any salary for his services, but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~ for each day actually spent in attending to ~~((his))~~ the duties as a member of the college board.

The members of the college board may be removed by the governor for inefficiency, neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office, in the manner provided by RCW 28B.10.500.

Sec. 65. Section 12, chapter 277, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 77, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28B.80-.110 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the council ~~((with))~~ shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 66. Section 8, chapter 174, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 79, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28C-.04.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the commission shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and will receive travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 67. Section 52, chapter 283, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 76, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28C.04-.300 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created a state advisory council on vocational education, hereinafter referred to as the "advisory council", consisting of not less than thirteen members appointed by the governor, without regard to the civil service laws, for terms of three years, except that in the case of the initial members, at least four shall be appointed for terms of one year each and at least four shall be appointed for terms of two years each, and appointments to fill vacancies shall be only for such terms as remain unexpired. The advisory council shall include persons who are:

(a) Familiar with the vocational needs and the problems of management and labor in the state, and a person or persons representing state industrial and economic development agencies;

(b) Representative of community colleges and other institutions of higher learning, area vocational schools, technical institutes, and postsecondary or adult education agencies or institutions, which may provide programs of vocational or technical education and training;

(c) Familiar with the administration of state and local vocational education programs, and a person or persons having special knowledge, experience, or qualifications with respect to vocational education and who are not involved in the administration of state or local vocational education programs;

(d) Familiar with programs of technical and vocational education, including programs in comprehensive secondary schools;

(e) Representative of local educational agencies, and a person or persons who are representative of school boards;

(f) Representative of manpower and vocational education agencies in the state, including a person or persons from the comprehensive area manpower planning system of the state;

(g) Representing school systems with large concentrations of academically, socially, economically, and culturally disadvantaged students;

(h) Possessed of special knowledge, experience, or qualifications, with respect to the special educational needs of physically or mentally handicapped persons; and

(i) Representative of the general public, including a person or persons representative of and knowledgeable about the poor and disadvantaged, who are not qualified for membership under any of the preceding clauses of this paragraph.

The advisory council shall meet at least four times a year at the call of the chairman, who shall be selected by vote of the members (~~(, but not less than four times a year)~~).

(2) Members of the advisory council shall receive (~~((twenty-five dollars for each day or portion thereof spent in serving as a member of the advisory council and))~~) their travel expenses while engaged in the business of the advisory council in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~).

Sec. 68. Section 2, chapter 136, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. as last amended by section 91, chapter 3, Laws of 1983 and RCW 41.05.025 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created a state employees' insurance board to be composed of the members of the present board holding office on the day prior to July 1, 1977, which such members shall serve until the expiration of the period of time of the term for which they were appointed and until their successors are appointed and qualified. Thereafter the board shall be composed as follows: The governor or the governor's designee; one administrative officer representing all of higher education to be appointed by the governor; two higher education faculty members to be appointed by the

governor; the director of the department of personnel who shall act as trustee; one representative of an employee association certified as an exclusive representative of at least one bargaining unit of classified employees and one representative of an employee union certified as exclusive representative of at least one bargaining unit of classified employees, both to be appointed by the governor; one person who is retired and is covered by a program under the jurisdiction of the board, to be appointed by the governor; one member of the senate who shall be appointed by the president of the senate; and one member of the house of representatives who shall be appointed by the speaker of the house. The terms of office of the administrative officer representing higher education, the two higher education faculty members, the representative of an employee association, the retired person, and the representative of an employee union shall be for four years: PROVIDED, That the first term of one faculty member and one employee association or union representative member shall be for three years. Meetings of the board shall be at the call of the director of personnel. The board shall prescribe rules for the conduct of its business and shall elect a chairman and vice chairman annually. Members of the board shall ~~((receive no compensation for their services; but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be paid for their travel expenses while on official business in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)), and legislative members shall receive allowances provided for in RCW 44.04.120.

(2) The board shall study all matters connected with the providing of adequate health care coverage, life insurance, liability insurance, accidental death and dismemberment insurance, and disability income insurance or any one of, or a combination of, the enumerated types of insurance and health care plans for employees and their dependents on the best basis possible with relation both to the welfare of the employees and to the state: PROVIDED, That liability insurance shall not be made available to dependents. The board shall design benefits, devise specifications, analyze carrier responses to advertisements for bids, determine the terms and conditions of employee participation and coverage, and decide on the award of contracts which shall be signed by the trustee on behalf of the board: PROVIDED, That all contracts for insurance, health care plans, including panel medicine plans, or protection applying to employees covered by RCW 28B.10.660 and chapters 41.04 and 41.05 RCW shall provide that the beneficiaries of such insurance, health care plans, or protection may utilize on an equal participation basis the services of practitioners licensed pursuant to chapters 18.22, 18.25, 18.32, 18.53, 18.57, 18.71, 18.74, 18.83, and 18.88 RCW: PROVIDED FURTHER, That the boards of trustees and boards of regents of the several institutions of higher education shall retain sole authority to provide liability insurance as provided in RCW 28B.10.660. The board shall

from time to time review and amend such plans. Contracts for all plans shall be rebid and awarded at least every five years.

(3) The board shall develop and provide as a part of the employee insurance benefit program an employee health care benefit plan which may be provided through a contract or contracts with regularly constituted insurance carriers or health care service contractors as defined in chapter 48.44 RCW, and a plan to be provided by a panel medicine plan in its service area only when approved by the board. The board may but shall not be required to pay more for health benefits under a panel medicine plan than it would otherwise be required to pay for health benefits by a contract with a regularly constituted insurance carrier or health care service contractor in effect at the time the panel medicine plan is included in the employee health care benefit plan. Except for panel medicine plans, the board may but is not required to contract with more than one insurance carrier or health care service contractor to provide similar benefits: PROVIDED, That employees may choose participation in only one of the health care benefit plans sponsored by the board. Active employees, as defined in RCW 41.05.010(2), eligible for medicare benefits shall have the option of continuing participation in health care programs on the same basis as all other employees or participation in medicare supplemental programs as may be developed by the board. These health care benefit plans shall provide coverage for all officials and employees and their dependents without premium or subscription cost to the individual employees and officials, unless the board approves a panel medicine plan at a subscription rate in excess of the premium of the regularly constituted insurance carrier or health care service contractor, in which circumstances an employee contribution may be authorized at an amount equal to such excess. Rates for self pay segments of state employee groups will be developed from the experience of the entire group. Such self pay rates will be established based on a separate rate for the employee, the spouse, and children.

(4) The board shall review plans proposed by insurance carriers who desire to offer property insurance and/or accident and casualty insurance to state employees through payroll deduction. The board may approve any such plan for payroll deduction by carriers holding a valid certificate of authority in the state of Washington and which the board determines to be in the best interests of employees and the state. The board shall promulgate rules setting forth criteria by which it shall evaluate the plans.

Sec. 69. Section 8, chapter 10, Laws of 1982 and RCW 41.06.110 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created a state personnel board composed of three members appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by the senate. The first such board shall be appointed within thirty days after December 8,

1960, for terms of two, four, and six years. Each odd-numbered year thereafter the governor shall appoint a member for a six-year term. Each member shall continue to hold office after the expiration of the member's term until a successor has been appointed. Persons so appointed shall have clearly demonstrated an interest and belief in the merit principle, shall not hold any other employment with the state, shall not have been an officer of a political party for a period of one year immediately prior to such appointment, and shall not be or become a candidate for partisan elective public office during the term to which they are appointed;

(2) Each member of the board shall be ~~((paid fifty dollars for each day in which he has actually attended a meeting of the board officially held))~~ compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act. The members of the board may receive any number of daily payments for official meetings of the board actually attended. Members of the board shall also be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of their official duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

(3) At its first meeting following the appointment of all of its members, and annually thereafter, the board shall elect a chairman and vice chairman from among its members to serve one year. The presence of at least two members of the board shall constitute a quorum to transact business. A written public record shall be kept by the board of all actions of the board. The director of personnel shall serve as secretary.

(4) The board may appoint and compensate hearing officers to hear and conduct appeals until December 31, 1982. Such compensation shall be paid on a contractual basis for each hearing, in accordance with the provisions of chapter 43.88 RCW and rules adopted pursuant thereto, as they relate to personal service contracts.

Sec. 70. Section 4, chapter 263, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 87, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 41.24.270 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the state board shall ~~((receive twenty-five dollars per day for each day actually spent in attending meetings of the state board))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act. Each member shall also receive travel expenses, including going to and from meetings of the state board or other authorized business of the state board, in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 71. Section 2, chapter 5, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. as last amended by section 2, chapter 146, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 41-.58.015 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Each member of the commission shall be ~~((paid one hundred dollars for each day during which the member attends a meeting of the commission officially held or attends to other business of the commission~~

~~authorized by the commission)) compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act. Members of the commission shall also be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of their official duties on the same basis as is provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).~~

(2) The commission shall appoint an executive director whose annual salary shall be determined under the provisions of RCW 43.03.028. The executive director shall perform such duties and have such powers as the commission shall prescribe in order to implement and enforce the provisions of this chapter. In addition to the performance of administrative duties, the commission may delegate to the executive director authority with respect to, but not limited to, representation proceedings, unfair labor practice proceedings, mediation of labor disputes, arbitration of disputes concerning the interpretation or application of a collective bargaining agreement, and, in certain cases, fact-finding or arbitration of disputes concerning the terms of a collective bargaining agreement. Such delegation shall not eliminate a party's right of appeal to the commission. The executive director, with such assistance as may be provided by the attorney general and such additional legal assistance consistent with chapter 43.10 RCW, shall have authority on behalf of the commission, when necessary to carry out or enforce any action or decision of the commission, to petition any court of competent jurisdiction for an order requiring compliance with the action or decision.

(3) The commission shall employ such employees as it may from time to time find necessary for the proper performance of its duties, consistent with the provisions of this chapter.

(4) The payment of all of the expenses of the commission, including travel expenses incurred by the members or employees of the commission under its orders, shall be subject to the provisions of RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 72. Section 1, chapter 167, Laws of 1982 as amended by section 2, chapter 54, Laws of 1983 and RCW 41.60.015 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created the productivity board. The board shall administer the employee suggestion program under this chapter and shall review applications for incentive pay for state employees under RCW 41.60.100, 41.60.110, and 41.60.120.

(2) The board shall be composed of:

(a) The secretary of state who shall act as chairperson;

(b) The director of personnel or the director's designee;

(c) The director of financial management or the director's designee;

and

(d) Three persons with experience in administering incentives such as those used by industry, with the governor, lieutenant governor, and speaker of the house of representatives each appointing one person. The governor's

appointee shall be a representative of an employee organization certified as an exclusive representative of at least one bargaining unit of classified employees, but no one organization may be represented for two consecutive terms.

Initially, the person appointed by the governor shall serve a one-year term, the person appointed by the lieutenant governor shall serve a two-year term, and the person appointed by the speaker shall serve a three-year term. Thereafter, these members shall serve three-year terms.

Members of the board shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act.

Sec. 73. Section 4, chapter 311, Laws of 1981 and RCW 41.64.030 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The board shall operate on either a part-time or a full-time basis, as determined by the governor. If it is determined that the board shall operate on a full-time basis, each member of the board shall receive an annual salary to be determined by the governor pursuant to RCW 43.03.040(~~(, as now existing or hereafter amended)~~). If it is determined that the board shall operate on a part-time basis, each member of the board shall (~~receive compensation of one hundred dollars for each day during which the member attends an official meeting of the board or performs statutorily prescribed duties approved by the chairperson. Such part-time compensation may not, however, exceed twelve thousand dollars for any one member in a fiscal year~~) be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act. Each board member shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of his or her duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060(~~(, as now existing or hereafter amended)~~).

(2) Members of the board shall report their financial affairs to the public disclosure commission pursuant to RCW 42.17.240(~~(, as now existing or hereafter amended)~~).

Sec. 74. Section 35, chapter 1, Laws of 1973 as last amended by section 15, chapter 147, Laws of 1982 and RCW 42.17.350 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby established a "public disclosure commission" which shall be composed of five members who shall be appointed by the governor, with the consent of the senate. All appointees shall be persons of the highest integrity and qualifications. No more than three members shall have an identification with the same political party. The original members shall be appointed within sixty days after January 1, 1973. The term of each member shall be five years except that the original five members shall serve initial terms of one, two, three, four, and five years, respectively, as designated by the governor. No member of the commission, during his tenure, shall (1) hold or campaign for elective office; (2) be an officer of any political party or political committee; (3) permit his name to be used, or make contributions, in support of or in opposition to any candidate or proposition; (4)

participate in any way in any election campaign; or (5) lobby or employ or assist a lobbyist: PROVIDED, That a member or the staff of the commission may lobby to the limited extent permitted by RCW 42.17.190 on matters directly affecting this chapter. No member shall be eligible for appointment to more than one full term. A vacancy on the commission shall be filled within thirty days of the vacancy by the governor, with the consent of the senate, and the appointee shall serve for the remaining term of his predecessor. A vacancy shall not impair the powers of the remaining members to exercise all of the powers of the commission. Three members of the commission shall constitute a quorum. The commission shall elect its own chairman and adopt its own rules of procedure in the manner provided in chapter 34.04 RCW. Any member of the commission may be removed by the governor, but only upon grounds of neglect of duty or misconduct in office.

~~((Each))~~ Members shall ~~((receive seventy-five dollars for each day or portion thereof spent in performance of his duties as a member of the commission;))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and in addition shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred while engaged in the business of the commission as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.43.060 ~~((as now or hereafter amended))~~. The compensation provided pursuant to this section shall not be considered salary for purposes of the provisions of any retirement system created pursuant to the general laws of this state.

Sec. 75. Section 43.20.030, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 11, chapter 18, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 43.20.030 are each amended to read as follows:

The state board of health shall be composed of six members. These shall be the secretary or his designee and five other persons to be appointed by the governor, including four persons experienced in matters of health and sanitation and one person representing the consumers of health care. The chairman shall be selected by the governor from among the five members appointed by him.

Members of the board shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 76. Section 18, chapter 62, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as amended by section 100, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.21A-.180 are each amended to read as follows:

The commission shall meet quarterly at a date and place of its choice, and at such other times as shall be designated by the director or upon the written request of a majority of the commission. Members of the commission shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for their travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060~~((, as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 77. Section 6, chapter 44, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as last amended by section 104, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.475 are each amended to read as follows:

The governor shall appoint a factory built housing and factory built commercial structures advisory board consisting of eleven members. Members appointed shall be broadly representative of the industries and professions involved in the development and construction of factory built housing or factory built commercial structures and shall include representation from building code enforcement agencies, architectural and engineering associations, building construction trades, the contracting and manufacturing industries, legislative bodies of local government, and the general public. The factory built housing and factory built commercial structures advisory board shall periodically review the rules promulgated under RCW 43.22.450 through 43.22.490 and shall recommend changes of such rules to the department when it deems changes advisable. Members (~~may receive up to twenty-five dollars for each day or portion thereof actually spent in attending upon the duties of the board, the rate to be determined by the board, and in addition thereto;~~) shall be entitled to reimbursement for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060(~~(, as now existing or hereafter amended)~~).

Sec. 78. Section 43.24.060, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 15, chapter 227, Laws of 1982 and RCW 43.24.060 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The director of licensing shall, from time to time, fix such times and places for holding examinations of applicants as may be convenient, and adopt general rules and regulations prescribing the method of conducting examinations.

The governor, from time to time, upon the request of the director of licensing, shall appoint examining committees, composed of three persons possessing the qualifications provided by law to conduct examinations of applicants for licenses to practice the respective professions or callings for which licenses are required.

The committees shall prepare the necessary lists of examination questions, conduct the examinations, which may be either oral or written, or partly oral and partly written, and shall make and file with the director of licensing lists, signed by all the members conducting the examination, showing the names and addresses of all applicants for licenses who have successfully passed the examination, and showing separately the names and addresses of the applicants who have failed to pass the examination, together with all examination questions and the written answers thereto submitted by the applicants.

Each member of a committee shall receive twenty-five dollars per day for each day spent in conducting the examination and in going to and returning from the place of examination, and travel expenses, in accordance

with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~)).

(2) The director of licensing may appoint advisory committees to advise the department regarding the preparation of examinations for professional licensing and such other specific aspects of regulating the professions within the jurisdiction of the department as the director may designate. Such a committee and its members shall serve at the pleasure of the director.

Each member of an advisory committee shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in attending meetings of the committee in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 79. Section 43.24.110, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 101, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.24.110 are each amended to read as follows:

Whenever there is filed with the director of licensing any complaint charging that the holder of a license has been guilty of any act or omission which by the provisions of the law under which the license was issued would warrant the revocation thereof, verified in the manner provided by law, the director of licensing shall request the governor to appoint, and the governor shall appoint, two qualified practitioners of the profession or calling of the person charged, who, with the director or his duly appointed representative, shall constitute a committee to hear and determine the charges and, in case the charges are sustained, impose the penalty provided by law. The decision of any two members of such committee shall be the decision of the committee.

The appointed members of the committee shall (~~receive twenty-five dollars per day for each day spent in the performance of their duties and in going to and returning from the place of hearing, and~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses, in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~)).

Sec. 80. Section 5, chapter 3, Laws of 1981 and RCW 43.33A.050 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the state investment board who are public employees shall serve without compensation but shall suffer no loss because of absence from their regular employment. Members of the board who are not public employees shall (~~receive fifty dollars for each day during which the member attends an official meeting of the board or performs statutorily prescribed duties approved by the chairperson~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act. Members of the board who are not legislators shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or~~

hereafter amended)). Legislative members shall receive allowances provided for in RCW 44.04.120 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)).

Sec. 81. Section 43.49.010, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.49-.010 are each amended to read as follows:

There shall be a nonsalaried commission to be known as the Columbia Basin commission, which shall consist of seven members, namely: One member designated by and from among the directors of the Quincy-Columbia Basin irrigation district, one designated by and from among the directors of the East Columbia Basin irrigation district, one designated by and from among the directors of the South Columbia Basin irrigation district; three members appointed by the governor, and removable by him at his pleasure; and the director of conservation who shall be chairman of the commission.

Not later than the first day of February each year, each of the respective irrigation district boards shall select one of its members to serve on the Columbia Basin commission for the ensuing year, and shall thereupon forthwith certify such selection to the governor. The term of any member designated by an irrigation district shall terminate when his successor has been certified to the governor or upon the expiration of his term as irrigation district director.

Each member of the commission, except the director of conservation, shall ((~~receive fifteen dollars per day and transportation while actually engaged in the performance of his duties within the state~~)) be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 82. Section 43.51.020, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 116, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43-.51.020 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a "state parks and recreation commission" consisting of seven electors of the state. The members of the commission shall be appointed by the governor by and with the advice and consent of the senate and shall serve for a term of six years, expiring on December 31st of even-numbered years, and until their successors are appointed. In case of a vacancy, the governor shall fill the vacancy for the unexpired term of the commissioner whose office has become vacant.

The commissioners incumbent as of August 11, 1969, shall serve as follows: Those commissioners whose terms expire December 31, 1970, shall serve until December 31, 1970; the elector appointed to succeed to the office, the term for which expired December 31, 1968, shall serve until December 31, 1974; the terms of three of the four remaining commissioners shall each expire on December 31, 1972.

To assure that no more than the terms of three members will expire simultaneously on December 31st in any one even-numbered year, the term of not more than one commissioner incumbent on August 11, 1969, as designated by the governor, who was either appointed or reappointed to serve

until December 31, 1972, shall be increased by the governor by two years, and said term shall expire December 31, 1974.

In making the appointments to the commission, the governor shall choose electors who understand park and recreation needs and interests. No person shall serve if he holds any elective or full-time appointive state, county, or municipal office. Members of the commission shall be ~~((entitled to be paid twenty-five dollars for each day actually spent on duties pertaining to the commission;))~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and in addition shall be allowed their travel expenses incurred while absent from their usual places of residence in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Payment of expenses pertaining to the operation of the commission~~((;))~~ shall be made upon vouchers certified to by such persons as shall be designated by the commission.

Sec. 83. Section 43.57.020, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 119, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.57.020 are each amended to read as follows:

The commission representing the state on ~~((said))~~ the joint commission shall have full authority to consider and carry on negotiations for such agreement or compact, to attend meetings of the joint commission convening in or out of the state, to employ clerical, legal, and engineering assistance, and generally to perform such duties as shall be required of the members thereof in carrying out the purpose and intent of this chapter; the term of office of ~~((said))~~ the commissioners shall be from June 11, 1953, until an agreement or compact binding on the state of Washington under the provisions of RCW 43.57.030 has been entered into: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That when a member of the commission is a member of the house of representatives, his term on the commission shall expire when he ceases to be a member of the house, and when a member of the commission is a member of the senate, his term on the commission shall expire when he ceases to be a member of the senate. Any vacancies occurring in the membership of ~~((said))~~ the commission shall be filled by the appointive power shown in RCW 43.57.010. Members of the commission representing the state who are not in the regular employ of the state shall ~~((receive fifteen dollars per day for the time actually spent on the work of the commission;))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred while away from their respective places of abode in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Members of the commission who are in the regular employ of the state shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred while away from their respective places of abode in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Payment of all expenses incurred by the interstate compact

commission, including the expenses of its members, shall be made on vouchers approved by its chairman.

Sec. 84. Section 11, chapter 5, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 1, chapter 206, Laws of 1981 and by section 7, chapter 338, Laws of 1981 and RCW 43.99.110 are each reenacted and amended to read as follows:

There is created the interagency committee for outdoor recreation consisting of the commissioner of public lands, the director of parks and recreation, the director of game, the director of fisheries, and, by appointment of the governor with the advice and consent of the senate, five members from the public at large who have a demonstrated interest in and a general knowledge of outdoor recreation in the state. The terms of members appointed from the public at large shall commence on January 1st of the year of appointment and shall be for three years or until a successor is appointed, except in the case of appointments to fill vacancies which shall be for the remainder of the unexpired term; provided the first such members shall be appointed for terms as follows: One member for one year, two members for two years, and two members for three years. The governor shall appoint one of the members from the public at large to serve as chairman of the committee for the duration of the member's term. Members employed by the state shall serve without additional pay and participation in the work of the committee shall be deemed performance of their employment. Members from the public at large ~~shall ((serve without pay, but)) be~~ compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be entitled to reimbursement individually for travel expenses incurred in performance of their duties as members of the committee in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 85. Section 7, chapter 94, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as amended by section 126, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.101-.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the commission shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties in accordance with RCW 43-.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. Attendance at meetings of the commission shall be deemed performance by a member of the duties of his employment.

Sec. 86. Section 5, chapter 219, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 128, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43-.105.032 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created the Washington state data processing authority consisting of eleven members appointed by the governor, and serving at his pleasure. The governor shall make such appointments within thirty days after April 25, 1973.

Members of the authority shall ~~((not))~~ be compensated for service on the authority ~~((but))~~ in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060~~((, as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

The authority shall elect a chairman from among its members and shall appoint an executive director within sixty days after April 25, 1973, subject to confirmation by a majority vote of the senate.

Sec. 87. Section 3, chapter 4, Laws of 1982 and RCW 43.121.030 are each amended to read as follows:

Council members shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now or hereafter amended))~~. Attendance at meetings of the council shall be deemed performance by a member of the duties of a member's employment.

Sec. 88. Section 7, chapter 273, Laws of 1983 and RCW 43.126.075 are each amended to read as follows:

Members of the board who are not otherwise public employees shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060, which shall be paid by the agency that each member represents and, for the four members of the general public, by the department of natural resources.

Sec. 89. Section 3, chapter 40, Laws of 1982 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 2, chapter 60, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.160.030 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The community economic revitalization board is hereby created to exercise the powers granted under this chapter.

(2) The board shall consist of nine persons appointed by the governor and the director of commerce and economic development, the director of planning and community affairs, the director of revenue, the commissioner of employment security, and the chairmen of the committee on commerce and economic development of the house of representatives and the committee on commerce and labor of the senate, or the equivalent standing committees, for a total of seventeen members. The appointive members shall be as follows: A recognized private or public sector economist selected from the governor's council of economic advisors; one port district official; one county official; one city official; one representative of the public; one representative of small businesses each from: (a) The area west of Puget Sound, (b) the area east of Puget Sound and west of the Cascade range, (c) the area east of the Cascade range and west of the Columbia river, and (d) the area east of the Columbia river; one executive from large businesses each from the area west of the Cascades and the area east of the Cascades. The appointive members shall initially be appointed to terms as follows: Three members for one-year terms, three members for two-year terms, and three members for

three-year terms which shall include the chairman. Thereafter each succeeding term shall be for three years. The representative from the governor's council of economic advisors shall serve as chairman of the board. The director of the department of commerce and economic development shall serve as vice chairman.

(3) Staff support shall be provided by the department of commerce and economic development.

(4) All appointive members of the board shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now or hereafter amended)).

(5) If a vacancy occurs by death, resignation, or otherwise of appointive members of the board, the governor shall fill the same for the unexpired term. Any members of the board, appointive or otherwise, may be removed for malfeasance or misfeasance in office, upon specific written charges by the governor, under chapter 34.04 RCW.

Sec. 90. Section 4, chapter 161, Laws of 1983 and RCW 43.180.040 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby established a public body corporate and politic, with perpetual corporate succession, to be known as the Washington state housing finance commission. The commission is an instrumentality of the state exercising essential government functions and, for purposes of the code, acts as a constituted authority on behalf of the state when it issues bonds pursuant to this chapter. The commission is a "public body" within the meaning of RCW 39.53.010.

(2) The commission shall consist of the following voting members:

(a) The state treasurer, ex officio;

(b) The director of the planning and community affairs agency, ex officio;

(c) An elected local government official, ex officio, with experience in local housing programs, who shall be appointed by the governor with the consent of the senate;

(d) A representative of housing consumer interests, appointed by the governor with the consent of the senate;

(e) A representative of labor interests, appointed by the governor, with the consent of the senate, after consultation with representatives of organized labor;

(f) A representative of low-income persons, appointed by the governor with the consent of the senate;

(g) Five members of the public appointed by the governor, with the consent of the senate, on the basis of geographic distribution and their expertise in housing, real estate, finance, energy efficiency, or construction, one of whom shall be appointed by the governor as chair of the commission

and who shall serve on the commission and as chair of the commission at the pleasure of the governor.

The term of the persons appointed by the governor, other than the chair, shall be four years from the date of their appointment, except that the terms of three of the initial appointees shall be for two years from the date of their appointment. The governor shall designate the appointees who will serve the two-year terms. An appointee may be removed by the governor for cause pursuant to RCW 43.06.070 and 43.06.080. The governor shall fill any vacancy in an appointed position by appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term. If the planning and community affairs agency is abolished, the resulting vacancy shall be filled by a state official who shall be appointed to the commission by the governor. If this official occupies an office or position for which senate confirmation is not required, then his appointment to the commission shall be subject to the consent of the senate. The members of the commission shall ~~((serve without compensation, but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and may be reimbursed, solely from the funds of the commission, for expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties under this chapter, subject to the provisions of RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060. A majority of the commission constitutes a quorum. Designees shall be appointed in such manner and shall exercise such powers as are specified by the rules of the commission.

(3) The commission may adopt an official seal and may select from its membership a vice chair, a secretary, and a treasurer. The commission shall establish rules concerning its exercise of the powers authorized by this chapter. The rules shall be adopted in conformance with chapter 34.04 RCW.

Sec. 91. Section 4, chapter 19, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.200.040 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a nuclear waste policy and review board to assist the department in carrying out its responsibilities under this chapter. The board shall consist of the following members: The chairman of the advisory council who shall also serve as chairman of the review board, the director of the department or the director's designee, the director of the energy office or the director's designee, the commissioner of public lands or the commissioner's designee, the secretary of social and health services or the secretary's designee, the chairman of the energy facility site evaluation council or the chairman's designee, four members of the state senate, appointed by the president of the senate, and four members of the house of representatives, appointed by the speaker, who shall be selected from each of the caucuses in each house, but no more than two members of each house shall be of the same political party. Legislative members shall be ex officio

nonvoting members of the board and shall serve while members of the legislature, at the pleasure of the appointing officer. The board shall be responsible for identifying and reviewing state agency policies relating to the management of radioactive wastes; analyzing recommendations of the advisory council to determine how state agencies may be responsive to the needs of the department in carrying out its duties under this chapter; assisting the department in determining ways in which coordination among state agencies can be improved; carrying out such review activities that will enable the governor to effectively evaluate federal actions; reviewing the activities of advisory and technical committees created by the governor; advising the director on the need for additional advisory and technical committees; and assisting the department to participate in the consultation and concurrence process provided for in the federal waste management act of 1982 and the low-level waste policy act of 1980 and to monitor and comment on decisions of the northwest interstate compact committee on low-level radioactive waste management.

Nonlegislative members shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060. Legislative members shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties in accordance with RCW 44.04.120. The legislature shall seek reimbursement from available sources, including the federal government, for legislative expenditures incurred pursuant to the provisions of this ((act)) chapter.

Sec. 92. Section 5, chapter 150, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. as last amended by section 159, chapter 151, Laws of 1979 and RCW 44.60.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The boards may meet as frequently as they deem necessary, whether or not the legislature is in session. Each board shall hold at least one public hearing each year at which the public will be permitted to testify only on matters relating to present or proposed legislative ethics codes, rules, and laws, as well as the functions and operations of the board. For attendance at meetings during the interim or in attending to other business of his board during the interim, each legislative member shall be entitled to the allowances provided for in RCW 44.04.120, and each lay member shall be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be entitled to travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)) from funds appropriated for that purpose.

All expenses incurred by a board or any member thereof shall be paid upon voucher forms as provided by the director of financial management and signed by the chairman of the board or his designee: PROVIDED, That vouchers for the expenses of the joint board shall be signed and attested by the chairman of the joint board.

Sec. 93. Section 3, chapter 51, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 46-.82.300 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The director shall be assisted in the duties and responsibilities of this chapter by the driver instructors' advisory committee, consisting of five members. Members of the advisory committee shall be appointed by the director for two-year terms and shall consist of a representative of the driver training schools, a representative of the driving instructors (who shall not be from the same school as the school member), a representative of the superintendent of public instruction, a representative of the department of licensing, and a representative from the Washington state traffic safety commission. Members shall ~~((receive compensation not to exceed twenty-five dollars for each day spent on official business and shall))~~ be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~. A member who is receiving a salary from the state shall not receive compensation other than travel expenses incurred in such service.

(2) The advisory committee shall meet at least semiannually and shall have additional meetings as may be called by the director. The director or the director's representative shall attend all meetings of the advisory committee and shall serve as chairman.

(3) Duties of the advisory committee shall be to:

(a) Advise and confer with the director or the director's representative on matters pertaining to the establishment of rules necessary to carry out this chapter;

(b) Review violations of this chapter and to recommend to the director appropriate enforcement or disciplinary action as provided in this chapter;

(c) Review and update when necessary a curriculum consisting of a list of items of knowledge and the processes of driving a motor vehicle specifying the minimum requirements adjudged necessary in teaching a proper and adequate course of driver education; and

(d) Prepare the examination for a driver instructor's certificate and re-view examination results at least once each calendar year for the purpose of updating and revising examination standards.

Sec. 94. Section 6, chapter 151, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. as last amended by section 29, chapter 53, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 47.01.061 are each amended to read as follows:

The commission shall meet at such times as it deems advisable but at least once every month. It may adopt its own rules and regulations and may establish its own procedure. It shall act collectively in harmony with recorded resolutions or motions adopted by majority vote of at least four members. The commission may appoint an administrative secretary, and shall elect one of its members chairman for a term of one year. The chairman shall be able to vote on all matters before the commission.

The commission shall submit to each regular session of the legislature held in an odd-numbered year its own budget proposal necessary for the commission's operations separate from that proposed for the department.

Each member of the commission shall ~~((receive compensation of sixty dollars per day for each day actually spent in the performance of duties; and))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for actual necessary traveling and other expenses in going to, attending, and returning from meetings of the commission, and actual and necessary traveling and other expenses incurred in the discharge of such duties as may be requested by a majority vote of the commission or by the secretary of transportation, but in no event shall a commissioner be compensated in any year for more than one hundred twenty days, except the chairman of the commission who may be paid compensation for not more than one hundred fifty days. Service on the commission shall not be considered as service credit for the purposes of any public retirement system.

Sec. 95. Section 19, chapter 15, Laws of 1983 and RCW 47.64.280 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is created the marine employees' commission. The governor shall appoint the commission with the consent of the senate. The commission shall consist of three members: One member to be appointed from labor, one member from industry, and one member from the public who has significant knowledge of maritime affairs. The public member shall be chairman of the commission. One of the original members shall be appointed for a term of three years, one for a term of four years, and one for a term of five years. Their successors shall be appointed for terms of five years each, except that any person chosen to fill a vacancy shall be appointed only for the unexpired term of the member whom he succeeds. Commission members are eligible for reappointment. Any member of the commission may be removed by the governor, upon notice and hearing, for neglect of duty or malfeasance in office, but for no other cause. Commission members are not eligible for state retirement under chapter 41.40 RCW by virtue of their service on the commission. Members of the commission shall be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall receive reimbursement for official travel and other expenses at the same rate and on the same terms as provided for the transportation commission by RCW 47.01.061. The payments shall be made from the Puget Sound ferry operations account.

(2) The marine employees' commission shall: (a) Adjust all complaints, grievances, and disputes between labor and management arising out of the operation of the ferry system as provided in RCW 47.64.150; (b) provide for impasse mediation as required in RCW 47.64.210; (c) conduct fact-finding and provide salary surveys as required in RCW 47.64.220; and (d) provide for the selection of an impartial arbitrator as required in RCW 47.64.240(5).

(3) In adjudicating all complaints, grievances, and disputes, the party claiming labor disputes shall, in writing, notify the marine employees' commission, which shall make careful inquiry into the cause thereof and issue an order advising the ferry employee, or the ferry employee organization representing him or her, and the department of transportation, as to the decision of the commission.

The parties are entitled to offer evidence relating to disputes at all hearings conducted by the commission. The orders and awards of the commission are final and binding upon any ferry employee or employees or their representative affected thereby and upon the department.

The commission shall adopt rules of procedure under chapter 34.04 RCW.

The commission has the authority to subpoena any ferry employee or employees, or their representatives, and any member or representative of the department, and any witnesses. The commission may require attendance of witnesses and the production of all pertinent records at any hearings held by the commission. The subpoenas of the commission are enforceable by order of any superior court in the state of Washington for the county within which the proceeding may be pending. The commission may hire staff as necessary, appoint consultants, enter into contracts, and conduct studies as reasonably necessary to carry out this chapter.

Sec. 96. Section 14, chapter 150, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 142, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 48.17.135 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created an insurance advisory examining board, hereafter referred to as the examining board or the board.

(2) The examining board shall consist of seven members, the commissioner who shall serve ex officio as a member and shall act as chairman, and six members appointed by the commissioner. Appointments shall be made within thirty days after June 8, 1967.

(3) The insurance commissioner as chairman shall keep a record of all proceedings of the board, send out notices of meetings of the board, draft rules and regulations of the board, and perform such other duties as may be required.

(4) The members of the board appointed by the commissioner shall have been licensed insurance agents or brokers of this state for at least five years prior to their appointments, three of whom shall have been engaged in the life or disability fields and the remaining three in other insurance fields. Consistent with the representation on the board, it may function as two separate committees, at which meetings the commissioner shall also preside.

(5) The first terms for members of the examining board appointed by the commissioner shall be as follows: Two members for one year; two members for two years; two members for three years. Thereafter, the terms shall be for three years and until their successors are appointed and qualified.

(6) The examining board, or any committee of the board, shall meet at the call of the commissioner. A majority of the members of the board or of a committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business by the board or a committee of the board.

(7) The board shall have the advisory power:

(a) To recommend general policy concerning the scope, contents, procedure and conduct of examinations to be given for respective licenses as agent, broker and solicitor.

(b) To recommend the questions comprising each particular such examination and from time to time to change such questions as the board deems advisable, and where examinations are composed by the board results of these examinations shall be evaluated by the board.

(c) To review other state insurance examination papers and the grading thereof.

(d) To recommend the scope and contents of material furnished agent, broker or solicitor examination applicants by the commissioner under RCW 48.17.120 for the purpose of preparing for any such examination.

(e) To recommend rules and regulations for the procedure to be followed in the conduct of such examinations, including, but not limited to, application for examination, frequency and place of examinations, minimum waiting period before reexamination, monitoring, and the safeguarding of examination questions and papers. The board shall file copies of all such rules and regulations, and of all amendments or modifications thereof, with the commissioner and with the code reviser for public inspection and information.

(f) To make such recommendations to the commissioner in regard to the administration of the examination requirement as the board from time to time deems appropriate.

(8) Members may be removed by the commissioner for any cause which unreasonably interferes with the proper discharge of the responsibilities of the board or any member thereof. Any vacancy shall be filled by the commissioner within ninety days after it occurs by appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term.

(9) Appointed members of the examining board (~~((shall receive compensation from the appropriation to the insurance commissioner at the rate of twenty-five dollars per day while discharging their duties as directed and approved by the commissioner, and))~~) shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses incurred in the actual performance of their duties in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~).

(10) The powers and recommendations of the examining board shall be advisory only.

Sec. 97. Section 1, chapter 231, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 2, chapter 39, Laws of 1982 1st ex. sess. and RCW 49.04.010 are each amended to read as follows:

The director of labor and industries shall appoint an apprenticeship council, composed of three representatives each from employer and employee organizations, respectively. The terms of office of the members of the apprenticeship council first appointed by the director of labor and industries shall be as follows: One representative each of employers and employees shall be appointed for one year, two years, and three years, respectively. Thereafter, each member shall be appointed for a term of three years. The governor shall appoint a public member to the apprenticeship council for a three-year term. The appointment of the public member is subject to confirmation by the senate. Each member shall hold office until his successor is appointed and has qualified and any vacancy shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired portion of the term. The state official who has been designated by the commission for vocational education as being in charge of trade and industrial education and the state official who has immediate charge of the state public employment service shall ex officio be members of said council, without vote. Each member of the council, not otherwise compensated by public moneys, shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~) and shall be (~~paid not more than twenty-five dollars for each day spent in attendance at meetings of the council~~) compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act. The apprenticeship council with the consent of employee and employer groups shall: (1) Establish standards for apprenticeship agreements in conformity with the provisions of this chapter; (2) issue such rules and regulations as may be necessary to carry out the intent and purposes of this chapter, including a procedure to resolve an impasse should a tie vote of the council occur; and (3) perform such other duties as are hereinafter imposed. Not less than once a year the apprenticeship council shall make a report to the director of labor and industries of its activities and findings which shall be available to the public.

Sec. 98. Section 4, chapter 270, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 145, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 49.60.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board shall be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and, while in session or on official business, shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred during such time in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~).

Sec. 99. Section 1, chapter 9, Laws of 1977 and RCW 67.08.003 are each amended to read as follows:

Before entering upon the duties of his office, each commissioner shall enter into a surety bond, executed by a surety company authorized to do

business in this state, payable to the state, and approved by the attorney general, in the penal sum of two thousand dollars conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties, which bond shall be filed with the secretary of state. Each member of the commission shall be reimbursed for the cost of his bond (~~and receive forty dollars per day~~), be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act, and be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~) while in the performance of his duties.

Sec. 100. Section 2, chapter 233, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 155, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 67.16-.017 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the Washington horse racing commission shall (~~receive forty dollars for each day actually spent in the performance of his duties~~) be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~) in going to, attending, and returning from meetings of the commission, and travel expenses incurred in the discharge of such duties as may be requested of him by a majority vote of the commission, but in no event shall a commissioner be paid in any one fiscal year in excess of one hundred twenty days, except the chairman of the commission who may be paid for not more than one hundred fifty days.

Sec. 101. Section 27, chapter 7, Laws of 1982 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 67.70.270 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the commission shall (~~receive compensation of one hundred dollars per day for each day actually spent in the performance of duties, and~~) be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for actual necessary traveling and other expenses in going to, attending, and returning from meetings of the commission(;) and actual and necessary traveling and other expenses incurred in the discharge of such duties as may be requested by a majority vote of the commission or by the director.

Sec. 102. Section 33, chapter 290, Laws of 1953 as amended by section 156, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 68.05.060 are each amended to read as follows:

Each member of the board shall (~~receive no compensation for his services, but~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~as now existing or hereafter amended~~).

Sec. 103. Section 3, chapter 147, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 210, Laws of 1983 and RCW 70.37.030 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby established a public body corporate and politic, with perpetual corporate succession, to be known as the Washington health care facilities authority. The authority shall constitute a political subdivision of the state established as an instrumentality exercising essential governmental functions. The authority is a "public body" within the meaning of RCW 39.53.010, as now or hereafter amended. The authority shall consist of the governor who shall serve as chairman, the lieutenant governor, the insurance commissioner, the chairman of the Washington state hospital commission, and one member of the public who shall be appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by the senate, on the basis of the member's interest or expertise in health care delivery, for a term expiring on the fourth anniversary of the date of appointment. In the event that any of the offices referred to shall be abolished the resulting vacancy on the authority shall be filled by the officer who shall succeed substantially to the powers and duties thereof. The members of the authority shall ~~((serve without compensation; but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be entitled to reimbursement, solely from the funds of the authority, for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties under this chapter, subject to the provisions of RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ((as now existing or hereafter amended)). A majority shall constitute a quorum.

The governor may designate an employee of the governor's office to act on behalf of the governor during the absence of the governor at one or more of the meetings of the authority. The vote of the designee shall have the same effect as if cast by the governor if the designation is in writing and is presented to the person presiding at the meetings included within the designation.

The governor may designate a member to preside during the governor's absence.

Sec. 104. Section 6, chapter 5, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 70.39.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The member representing consumers of health care services shall serve as chairman. The commission shall elect from its members a vice-chairman biennially. Meetings of the commission shall be held as frequently as its duties require. The commission shall keep minutes of its meetings and adopt procedures for the governing of its meetings, minutes, and transactions.

Three members shall constitute a quorum, but a vacancy on the commission shall not impair its power to act. No action of the commission shall be effective unless three members concur therein.

The members of the commission shall ~~((receive no compensation but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses ((while attending meetings of the commission in the same manner as legislators engaged in interim committee business as in RCW 44.04.120)) in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

Sec. 105. Section 2, chapter 32, Laws of 1951 as amended by section 159, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 70.79.020 are each amended to read as follows:

The members of the board shall ~~((serve without salary))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall receive travel expenses incurred while in the performance of their duties as members of the board, in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 106. Section 7, chapter 139, Laws of 1973 as amended by section 161, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 70.95B.070 are each amended to read as follows:

For the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this chapter, a board of examiners for wastewater operator certification shall be appointed. This board may serve in a common capacity for the certification of both water and wastewater plant and system operators. One member shall be named from the department of ecology, by its director to serve at his pleasure, and one member from the department of social and health services by its secretary, to serve at his pleasure, and one member who is required to employ a certified operator and who holds the position of city manager, city engineer, director of public works, superintendent of utilities, or an equivalent position who will be appointed by the governor. The governor shall also appoint two members who are operators holding a certificate of at least the second highest operator classification for wastewater plant operators established by regulation of the director, and if authorized in a water supply system operator certification act, two members who are operators holding a certificate of at least the second highest classification for waterworks operators established pursuant to such act.

The employer representative shall be appointed for an initial one-year term and the operators for initial terms of two and three years respectively. Thereafter, the members appointed by the governor shall serve for a three-year period. Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder for an unexpired term by the appointing authorities.

This board shall assist in the development of rules and regulations, shall prepare, administer, and evaluate examinations of operator competency as required in this chapter, and shall recommend the issuance or revocation of certificates. The board shall determine when and where the examinations shall be held. The examination shall be held at least three times annually.

Each member appointed by the governor shall ~~((serve without compensation, but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses while engaged in the business of the board as prescribed in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

Sec. 107. Section 21, chapter 136, Laws of 1981 and RCW 72.09.150 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The corrections standards board shall consist of nine voting members appointed by the governor with the consent of the senate. The secretary of corrections shall serve as an ex officio member without a vote. In addition, the speaker of the house of representatives and the president of the senate shall each appoint two nonvoting members, one from each of the two largest caucuses in their respective houses.

(2) The voting members shall serve four-year staggered terms. No member may serve more than two consecutive terms. Of the voting members, initially one-third shall be appointed for two-year terms, one-third for three-year terms, and one-third for four-year terms. The legislative members shall serve two-year terms, or until they cease to be members of the house from which they were appointed, whichever occurs first.

(3) The voting membership of the board shall be divided so that two-thirds of the members reside west of the Cascade mountains and one-third reside east of the Cascade mountains. One-third of the members shall be elected county, city, or town officials, one-third shall be elected or appointed state officials or their designees, and one-third shall be private citizens. In 1983, the members appointed to take the positions of the persons previously appointed to the two-year terms provided under subsection (2) of this section shall have been members of the state jail commission as local government representatives on June 30, 1983. The board shall include women and members of "minority groups" as that term is commonly understood.

(4) The members of the board shall (~~not receive any compensation for their services but~~) be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses under RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 for nonlegislative members and under RCW 44.04.120 for legislative members(~~, as now or hereafter amended~~).

(5) The members shall elect a chairman and such other officers as they deem necessary.

Sec. 108. Section 3, chapter 137, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 173, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 76.09.030 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created the forest practices board of the state of Washington as an agency of state government consisting of members as follows:

- (a) The commissioner of public lands or his designee;
- (b) The director of the department of commerce and economic development or his designee;
- (c) The director of the department of agriculture or his designee;
- (d) The director of the department of ecology or his designee;

(e) An elected member of a county legislative authority appointed by the governor: PROVIDED, That such member's service on the board shall be conditioned on his continued service as an elected county official; and

(f) Six members of the general public appointed by the governor, one of whom shall be an owner of not more than five hundred acres of forest land, and one of whom shall be an independent logging contractor.

(2) The members of the initial board appointed by the governor shall be appointed so that the term of one member shall expire December 31, 1975, the term of one member shall expire December 31, 1976, the term of one member shall expire December 31, 1977, the terms of two members shall expire December 31, 1978, and the terms of two members shall expire December 31, 1979. Thereafter, each member shall be appointed for a term of four years. Vacancies on the board shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointments. Each member of the board shall continue in office until his successor is appointed and qualified. The commissioner of public lands or his designee shall be the chairman of the board.

(3) The board shall meet at such times and places as shall be designated by the chairman or upon the written request of the majority of the board. The principal office of the board shall be at the state capital.

(4) Members of the board, except public employees and elected officials, shall ~~((receive forty dollars for each day or major portion thereof actually spent in attending to their duties as board members))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and in addition they shall be entitled to reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as provided in RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

(5) The board may employ such clerical help and staff pursuant to chapter 41.06 RCW as is necessary to carry out its duties.

Sec. 109. Section 22, chapter 137, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. as last amended by section 5, chapter 47, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 76.09-.220 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The appeals board shall operate on either a part-time or a full-time basis, as determined by the governor. If it is determined that the appeals board shall operate on a full-time basis, each member shall receive an annual salary to be determined by the governor. If it is determined that the appeals board shall operate on a part-time basis, each member shall ~~((receive compensation on the basis of seventy-five dollars for each day spent in performance of his duties))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act; PROVIDED, That such compensation shall not exceed ten thousand dollars in a fiscal year. Each member shall receive reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the discharge of his duties in accordance with the provisions of RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 ~~((as now existing or hereafter amended))~~.

(2) The appeals board shall as soon as practicable after the initial appointment of the members thereof, meet and elect from among its members a chairman, and shall at least biennially thereafter meet and elect or reelect a chairman.

(3) The principal office of the appeals board shall be at the state capital, but it may sit or hold hearings at any other place in the state. A majority of the appeals board shall constitute a quorum for making orders or decisions, promulgating rules and regulations necessary for the conduct of its powers and duties, or transacting other official business, and may act though one position on the board be vacant. One or more members may hold hearings and take testimony to be reported for action by the board when authorized by rule or order of the board. The appeals board shall perform all the powers and duties granted to it in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law.

(4) The appeals board shall make findings of fact and prepare a written decision in each case decided by it, and such findings and decision shall be effective upon being signed by two or more members and upon being filed at the appeals board's principal office, and shall be open to public inspection at all reasonable times.

(5) The appeals board shall either publish at its expense or make arrangements with a publishing firm for the publication of those of its findings and decisions which are of general public interest, in such form as to assure reasonable distribution thereof.

(6) The appeals board shall maintain at its principal office a journal which shall contain all official actions of the appeals board, with the exception of findings and decisions, together with the vote of each member on such actions. The journal shall be available for public inspection at the principal office of the appeals board at all reasonable times.

(7) The forest practices appeals board shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear appeals arising from an action or determination by the department.

(8) (a) Any person aggrieved by the approval or disapproval of an application to conduct a forest practice may seek review from the appeals board by filing a request for the same within thirty days of the approval or disapproval. Concurrently with the filing of any request for review with the board as provided in this section, the requestor shall file a copy of his request with the department and the attorney general. The attorney general may intervene to protect the public interest and insure that the provisions of this chapter are complied with.

(b) The review proceedings authorized in subparagraph (a) of this subsection are subject to the provisions of chapter 34.04 RCW pertaining to procedures in contested cases.

Sec. 110. Section 77.04.060, chapter 36, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 6, chapter 78, Laws of 1980 and RCW 77.04.060 are each amended to read as follows:

The commission shall hold regular meetings within the first ten days of January, April, July, and October of each year, and special meetings when called by the chairman or by four members. Four members constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

The commission at a meeting in each odd-numbered year shall elect one of its members as chairman and another member as vice chairman, each of whom shall serve for a term of two years or until a successor is elected and qualified.

When a vacancy in the office of the director has occurred, the commission shall elect a director by approval of four members. The director shall hold office at the pleasure of the commission.

Members of the commission (~~(may receive twenty-five dollars for each day actually spent in the performance of official duties)~~) shall be compensated in accordance with section 5 of this 1984 act. In addition, members are allowed their travel expenses incurred while absent from their usual places of residence in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~(as now existing or hereafter amended)~~).

Sec. 111. Section 2, chapter 18, Laws of 1935 as last amended by section 3, chapter 337, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 88.16.020 are each amended to read as follows:

The department of transportation of the state of Washington shall be the office of the board, and all records shall be kept in ~~((said))~~ the office of the department. Each pilotage commissioner shall ~~((receive the sum of forty dollars per day for each day actually engaged in the conduct of the business of the board, together with))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses(;) in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~(as now existing or hereafter amended)~~), to be paid out of the pilotage account on vouchers approved by the chairperson of the board: PROVIDED, That the sums received under this section shall not be considered compensation earnable as defined pursuant to RCW 41.40.010(8).

The board is authorized to employ personnel, pursuant to chapter 41-.06 RCW, as necessary to conduct the business of the board.

Sec. 112. Section 4, chapter 304, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 179, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 89.08-.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Members shall ~~((receive no compensation, but))~~ be compensated in accordance with section 4 of this 1984 act and shall be entitled to travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 (~~(as now existing or hereafter amended)~~) incurred in the discharge of their duties.

The commission shall keep a record of its official actions, shall adopt a seal, which shall be judicially noticed, and may perform such acts, hold such public hearings, and promulgate such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the execution of its functions under this 1973 amendatory act.

The state department of ecology is empowered to pay the travel expenses of the elected and appointed members of the state conservation commission, and the salaries, wages and other expenses of such administrative officers or other employees as may be required under the provisions of this chapter.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 113. There is added to chapter 43.03 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The office of financial management shall review the compensation levels established for the various boards and commissions by sections 2, 3, 4, and 5 of this act. The conclusions of the review, together with any proposed legislation, shall be submitted to the legislative budget committee and the appropriate standing committees of the legislature by December 1, 1988, and every four years thereafter.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 114. Section headings and captions used in sections 2 through 5 of this act do not constitute any part of the law.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 115. If any provision of this act or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 116. This act shall take effect on July 1, 1985.

Passed the House March 1, 1984.

Passed the Senate February 23, 1984.

Approved by the Governor March 30, 1984, with the exception of sections 22, 23, 24, 25 and 38, which were vetoed.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 30, 1984.

Note: Governor's explanation of partial veto is as follows:

I am returning herewith, without my approval as to several sections, House Bill No. 1159, entitled:

"AN ACT Relating to state government."

Sections 22, 23, 24, and 25 would amend statutory provisions dealing with existing barbering and cosmetology boards. Because the legislature has chosen to allow these boards to terminate under existing provisions and to assign their functions to the Department of Licensing and a new State Cosmetology, Barbering and Manicuring Advisory Board (ESHB 1187, Section 9), these sections need to be vetoed in order to avoid potential double-amendment problems.

With the exception of sections 22, 23, 24, 25, and 38, House Bill No. 1159 is approved.

CHAPTER 288

[Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 4403]

HEALTH CARE COSTS

AN ACT Relating to health care costs; amending section 2, chapter 5, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 70.39.010; amending section 3, chapter 5, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and